
 

 
 

 
 

 
  Shropshire Council 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Guildhall, 
Frankwell Quay,  

Shrewsbury  
SY3 8HQ 

Committee:  Council 
 

 14 May 2025 

Date: Thursday, 22 May 2025 

Time: 10.00 am 
Venue: The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ 

 
You are requested to attend the above meeting. The Agenda is attached 

Members of the Council – a briefing note will be circulated by e-mail prior to the meeting with 

important housekeeping details and arrangements for the meeting. 

Members of the Public – If you wish to attend the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@shropshire.gov.uk to check whether a seat will be available for you. 

Please click here to view the livestream of the meeting on the date and time stated on the agenda 
 

The recording of the event will also be made available shortly after the meeting on the Shropshire 
Council Youtube Channel Here 

 
Tim Collard 
Assistant Director - Legal and Governance  

 
 

Sho Abdul 
Caroline Bagnall 
Elizabeth Barker 

Bernie Bentick 
Neil Bentley 

Ed Bird 
Jeremy Blandford 
Andy Boddington 

Duncan Borrowman 
Thomas Clayton 

Susan Coleman 
Rachel Connolly 
Tom Dainty 

Jamie Daniels 
Rosemary Dartnall 

David Davies 
Pamela Davies 
Andy Davis 

Julian Dean 
Joshua Dickin 

Mandy Duncan 
Greg Ebbs 
Susan Eden 

Donna Edmunds 
Craig Emery 

Brian Evans 
Roger Evans 
Adam Fejfer 

Rhys Gratton 
Gary Groves 

Andy Hall 
Kate Halliday 
Harry Hancock-Davies 

Nick Hignett 
Alan Holford 

George Hollyhead 
Ruth Houghton 
Dawn Husemann 

Peter Husemann 
Benedict Jephcott 

Robert Jones 
Duncan Kerr 
Heather Kidd 

Christopher Lemon 
Nigel Lumby 

Brendan Mallon 
Sarah Marston 
David Minnery 

Vicky Moore 
Mark Morris 

Alan Mosley 
Malcolm Myles-Hook 
Chris Naylor 

James Owen 
Mark Owen 

Wendy Owen 
Vivienne Parry 
Ed Potter 

Rosie Radford 
Sharon Ritchie-Simmons 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/featured
https://www.youtube.com/user/ShropshireCouncil/streams


Carl Rowley 
Charles Shackerley-Bennett 

Colin Stanford 
Jon Tandy 

Colin Taylor 

Dan Thomas 
Teri Trickett 

David Vasmer 
Alex Wagner 

Beverley Waite 

David Walker 
Sam Walmsley 

Alison Williams 
Rob Wilson 
 

 
Your Committee Officer is:  

 
Tim Ward  Committee Officer 

Tel:   01743 257713 
Email:   tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk 



AGENDA 
 
1  Election of Chairman  

 

To elect a Chairman for the ensuing year. 
 

2  Apologies for Absence  

 
To receive apologies for absence 

 
3  Appointment of Vice-Chairman  

 
To appoint a Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year 
 

4  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  

 

Members are reminded that they must declare their disclosable pecuniary interests and 
other registrable or non-registrable interests in any matter being considered at the 
meeting as set out in Appendix B of the Members’ Code of Conduct and consider if they 

should leave the room prior to the item being considered. Further advice can be sought 
from the Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting. 

 
5  Minutes  

 

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 February 
2025, attached 

 
6  Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors  

 

Report of the Returning Officer is attached. 
  

Contact Andy Begley Tel 01743 258915 
  
Council is asked to place on record its appreciation of the services of the following 

Councillors who decided not to seek re-election or were not returned by the electorate. 
 

Roy Aldcroft 
Jeff Anderson 
Nick Bardsley 

Joyce Barrow 
Tom Biggins 

Peter Broomhall 
Julia Buckley 
Garry Burchett 

Gwilym Butler 
Dean Carroll 

Steve Charmley 
Ted Clarke 
Gerald Dakin 

Steve Davenport 
Mary Davies 

Geoff Elner 
David Evans 
Julia Evans 

Nat Green 

Vince Hunt 
Kirstie Hurst-Knight 
Mark Jones 

Simon Jones 
Christian Lea 

Hilary Luff 
Robert Macey 
Dan Morris 

Pam Moseley 
Cecilia Motley 

Peggy Mullock 
Ian Nellins 
Kevin Pardy 

Tony Parsons 
Lezley Picton 

John Price 
Chris Schofield 
Andrew Sherrington 

Robert Tindall 



Paul Gill 
Rob Gittins 

Simon Harris 
Nigel Hartin 

Richard Huffer 
Tracey Huffer 
 

Edward Towers 
Kevin Turley 

Claire Wild 
Brian Williams 

Mark Williams 
Paul Wynn 

 

7  Announcements  

 

To receive such communications as the Chairman and Head of Paid Service may desire 
to lay before the Council. 
 

8  Election of Leader of the Council  

 

To elect a Leader of the Council for the ensuing 4 years. 
 

9  Appointment of Cabinet Members, Deputy Cabinet Members and their Portfolios  

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Legal and Governance is to follow 

  
Contact Tim Collard Tel 01743 252756 
 

10  Constitution of Committees and Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

 

Report of the Assistant Director – Legal and Governance is to follow 
  
Contact Tim Collard Tel 01743 252756 

 
11  Appointment to Outside Bodies, Committees and Other Groups  

 
Report of the Assistant Director – Legal and Governance is to follow 
  

Contact Tim Collard Tel 01743 252756 
 

12  Scheme of Delegation  

 
 

13  Dates of Council Meetings  

 

To agree that in 2025/26, meetings of the Council will be held on the following dates 
commencing at 10.00am: 
 

17 July 2025 
25 September 2025 

11 December 2025 
26 February 2026 
26 March 2026 

14 May 2026 
 

14  Exclusion of Press and Public  

 
To resolve that, in accordance with the provisions of schedule 12A of the Local 

Government Act 1972 and Paragraph 10.4 [3] of the Council’s Access to Information 
Rules, the public and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the 

following items 



 
15  Exempt Minutes  

 
To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the previous meeting held on 27 

February 2025 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 Committee and Date 

 
Council 
 

14 May 2025 

 
COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of the meeting held on 27 February 2025 

In the The Council Chamber, The Guildhall, Frankwell Quay, Shrewsbury, SY3 8HQ 
10.00 am - 3.45 pm 
 

Responsible Officer:    Tim Ward 

Email:  tim.ward@shropshire.gov.uk      Tel:  01743 257713 

 
Present  

Councillors Vince Hunt (Chairman) Lezley Picton (Leader), Brian Williams (Vice 

Chairman), Ian Nellins (Deputy Leader), Roy Aldcroft, Jeff Anderson, Caroline Bagnall, 
Nicholas Bardsley, Joyce Barrow, Bernie Bentick, Thomas Biggins, Ed Bird, 

Andy Boddington, Peter Broomhall, Garry Burchett, Gwilym Butler, Dean Carroll, 
Ted Clarke, Rosemary Dartnall, Steve Davenport, Mary Davies, Julian Dean, Geoff Elner, 
David Evans, Julia Evans, Roger Evans, Paul Gill, Rob Gittins, Nat Green, Kate Halliday, 

Simon Harris, Nigel Hartin, Nick Hignett, Ruth Houghton, Richard Huffer, Kirstie Hurst-
Knight, Mark Jones, Simon Jones, Duncan Kerr, Heather Kidd, Christian Lea, Hilary Luff, 

Nigel Lumby, Robert Macey, David Minnery, Dan Morris, Pamela Moseley, Alan Mosley, 
Peggy Mullock, Vivienne Parry, Tony Parsons, John Price, Ed Potter, Chris Schofield, 
Andrew Sherrington, Colin Taylor, Dan Thomas, Kevin Turley, David Vasmer, 

Alex Wagner, Claire Wild, Mark Williams, Rob Wilson and Paul Wynn 
 
 
74 Apologies for Absence  

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Julia Buckley, Steve 
Charmley, Rachel Connolly, Gerald Dakin, Tracey Huffer, Kevin Pardy and Robert 
Tindall 

 
75 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests  

 
Members were reminded that they must not participate in the discussion or voting on 
any matter in which they have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and should leave the 

room prior to the commencement of the debate. 
 
76 Minutes  

 
RESOLVED:  

 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2024, as circulated with the 

agenda papers, be approved and signed as a correct record. 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 2 

 

 
77 Announcements  

 
Chairman’s Engagements 

 

The Chairman referred Members to the list of official engagements carried out by 
himself and the Vice Chairman since the last meeting of the Council on 12 December 

2024, which had been emailed prior to the meeting. 
 
78 Public Questions  

 
Public Questions 

 
The Chairman advised that public questions had been received from Terri Trickett, 

Carolyn Mahy, Victoria Moore, Jon Moore, Shauney Connor and Frank Oldaker. A 
copy of the questions and the responses provided are available from the web page 
for the meeting. 

 

Public Questions Council 27 February 2025 with Responses.pdf 

Petition 
 

A petition, bearing over 1000 signatures has been received from Huw Rees, 
requesting a debate under the Council’s Petition Scheme. The petition requested that 
the Council:  

 
Uphold the Listed Buildings Act 1990 to restore the New Market Buildings, a grade II 

listed building in Bridgnorth that has fallen into a dangerous state of disrepair. If the 
owner does not make repairs within a reasonable timeframe, we call for a 
Compulsory Purchase Order to bring the building back into public ownership. 

 
In presenting his petition Mr Rees outlined the history of the building and commented 

that one use for the building once refurbished could be as a community hub. 
 
Several Members commented that the New Market Hall was an important building 

and should be maintained. 
 

The Portfolio Holder for Housing and Assets thanked Mr Rees for bringing his 
petition.  He advised Members that the Council had carried out some work on the 
building to make it safe, the cost of which would be reclaimed through a charge on 

the building.  He stated that the Council was trying to maintain a dialogue with the 
owner of the building to ensure its retention. 

 
The Portfolio Holder proposed that the Council hold a meeting with the petitioner, MP 
for South Shropshire and other stakeholders to take the matter forward to ensure the 

long-term future sustainability of the building. 
 
Following a vote it was RESOLVED 

 

Page 2

https://eur03.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fshropshire.gov.uk%2Fcommittee-services%2Fdocuments%2Fs40090%2FPublic%2520Questions%2520Council%252027%2520February%25202025%2520with%2520Responses.pdf&data=05%7C02%7Ctim.ward%40shropshire.gov.uk%7C4a886a8454ac4a2c418d08dd574d7b93%7Cb6c13011372d438bbc8267e4c7966e89%7C0%7C0%7C638762712792643102%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=44FEss7q%2BBrDvmVFPoEazaeRsUOyucHMSZfyn1Yw%2BK8%3D&reserved=0


Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 3 

 

That the Council hold a meeting with the petitioner, MP for South Shropshire and 
other stakeholders to take the matter forward to ensure the long-term future 

sustainability of the building. 
 

 
 
79 Questions from Members  

 
The Chair advised that 6 questions had been received in accordance with Procedure 

Rule 15. 
 
Question from Councillor Simon Harris regarding obtaining extra funding to assist 

with caring for Shropshire’s rough sleepers.  There was no supplementary question 
 

Question from Councillor Rob Wilson regarding the road surface on Shelton Road.  
There was no supplementary question 
 

Question from Councillor Roy Aldcroft regarding abandoned trailers on the A53.  In 
response to a supplementary question the Portfolio Holder agreed to update 

Councillor Aldcroft with timescales for the removal of the trailers 
 
Question from Councillor Pam Moseley regarding a new road layout at Belvidere 

Road/rail bridge. In response to a supplementary question the Portfolio Holder 
agreed to update Councillor Moseley with timescales for the works 

 
Question from Councillor Rosemary Dartnall regarding the Toucan Crossing on 
Oteley Road ,  By way of supplementary question Councillor Dartnall asked for an 

update on the timescales for the proposed works and suggested that in the interim 
cyclists be diverted to remain on the path to ensure their safety. 

 
Question from Councillor David Vasmer regarding the North West Relief Road. There 
was no supplementary question. 

 
80 Financial Strategy 2025/26 - 2029/30  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Lezley Picton, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Policy 
and Strategy, Improvement and Communications, and seconded by Councillor 

Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities 
that the report of the Executive Director, Resources, and the recommendations 

contained therein, be received and agreed. 
 
By way of amendment Councillor Rosemary Dartnall proposed that recommendation 

3.1 be amended to read: 
 

“3.1. It is recommended that members consider the recommendations set out below 
in five separate sections (A to E). Each of the five sections will be voted on as an 
individual component of the financial strategy.” 

 
This was seconded by Councillor Roger Evans 

 

Page 3



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 4 

 

On taking a vote the amendment was not supported 
 

By way of amendment Councillor Roger Evans proposed that Section A be voted on 
separately to Sections B to E.  This was seconded by Councillor Andy Boddington 

 
On taking a vote the amendment was not supported 
 

On being put to a recorded vote with 39 Members voting for, 17 against and 10 
abstentions as follows: 

 
For 

 

Councillors Aldcroft, Anderson, Bardsley, Barrow, Biggins, Bird, Broomhall, Burchett, 
Butler, Carroll, Davenport, Elner, D Evans, Gill, Gittins, Harris, Hignett, Hunt, Hurst-

Knight, M Jones, S Jones, Lea, Luff, Lumby, Macey, Morris, Motley, Mullock, Nellins, 
Picton, Potter, Price, Schofield, Thomas, Towers, Turley, Wild, B Williams and Wynn 
 
Against 

 

Councillors Bentick, Boddington, Davies, R Evans, Green, Hartin, Houghton, R 
Huffer, Kidd, Minnery, Parry, Sherrington, Taylor, Vasmer, Wagner, M Williams and 
Wilson 

 
Abstentions 

 
Councillors Bagnall, Clarke, Dartnall, Dean, J Evans, Halliday, Kerr, Moseley, Mosley 
and Parsons 

 
RESOLVED:   

 
In respect of council tax: 
 

1) Approve a 4.99% Council tax rise (a 2.99% increase to Council tax and a 2% 
increase to Adult Social Care Precept) resulting in a basic amount of council 

tax for a Band D property of £1,806.67 in the billing authority’s area, calculated 
in accordance with the provisions of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 
(section 42b).  

 
2) In accordance with the provisions of Section 40 (2) of the 1992 Act, approve 

the amount of Council Tax calculated for each category of dwelling in the 
billing authority’s area to be as follows: 
 

Property 

Band 

2025/26 Charge 

£ 

A 1,204.45 

B 1,405.19 

C 1,605.93 

D 1,806.67 

E 2,208.15 

Page 4



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 5 

 

F 2,609.64 

G 3,011.12 

H 3,613.34 

 
3) approve a total precept of £219,282,837. 

 
4) approve the formal council tax resolution as set out in Appendix 4 to determine 

the levels of Council Tax for Shropshire Council for 2025/26. 

 
 

 
 

In respect of the revenue budget: 

 

5) approve the 2025/26 gross budget of £767.007m outlined in the Budget Book 

at Appendix 3. 
 

6) note the key changes to the MTFS since the January update as outlined in 

Appendix 1: 

 the public consultation and related findings 

 the collaborative budget process and findings 

 the Financial Settlement and implications for the Council 

 the Collection Fund outturn and the impact on next year 

 the latest budget forecast for the current year and the resulting likely 

impact on reserves in this year and next (also included in the MTFS 
assumptions) 

 Inclusion of the updated Equality, Social Inclusion and Health Impact 

Assessment (ESHIA) 
 

7) note the alignment of this report with other reports in this agenda, including the 
Fees and Charges proposals, and the proposed Treasury Strategy. 
 

8) note the revised funding gap for the years 2026/27 to 2029/30. 
 

9) Continue to manage the substantial risk in delivering a balanced budget over 
2025/26 by retaining the seven risk areas set out in paragraph 4.2 for monthly 
reporting 

 
In respect of the reserves position: 

 

10)  note the Statement of the Chief Financial Officer on the Robustness of 
Estimates and Adequacy of Reserves as set out in Section 6.1 – 6.3 of the 

MTFS at Appendix 1 
 

11)  Approve the recommended level of general fund balances to support the 
2025/26 revenue budget of £46.860m, noting that the projected balance is 
presently below this for 2025/26 at £32.714m. 

 

Page 5



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 6 

 

12)  Note the risk assessed level and budgeted level of general reserves for the 
following four years and the need to profile savings delivery over this period, 

necessitating the recommended level of general reserves to be held at 
£7.214m in 2026/27, £19.214m in 2026/27, £24.214m in 2028/29 and 

£34.214m in 2029/30. 
 

In respect of the capital programme and strategy: 

 

13)  note the continued use of the Policy for Flexibility around the use of Capital 

Receipts as detailed in section 8.1 of the MTFS at Appendix 1 including the 
application made in December 2024 for a capitalisation direction for the 
financial year 2024/25. 

 
14)  agree the adoption of the Capital Strategy 2024/25 – 2029/30 attached as 

Appendix 2. 
 

15)  note the prioritised capital schemes identified at Appendix 2 section 8 

including the need to identify and confirm funding sources for these schemes. 
 

16)  agree the Capital Programme as set out in Appendix 2 section 6 and Annex B 
to the Capital Strategy including a virement of £5m between Capital Receipts 
and Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). 

 
 

17)  note that provision is included within the budget for future investment in a 
transformation programme.  

 

18)  Note the financial implications of the four scenarios in the NWRR project as 
set out in Section 8.13 of the Capital Strategy (Appendix 2). 

 
In respect of the Pay and Rewards Policy: 
 

19)  agree the Pay and Rewards Policy for all Council staff for 2025/26 as set out 
in Appendix 5. 

 

 
81 Fees & Charges 2025/26   

 
It was proposed by Councillor Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate 

Resources and Communities, and seconded by Councillor Simon Jones that the 
report of the Executive Director, Resources, and the recommendations contained 

therein, be received and agreed. 
 

RESOLVED:   

 
That Members 

 
1. Note the breakdown of the total income for 2024/25 and 2025/26 and that the 

proposed 2025/26 charges for discretionary services represent £55.117m of the 

£103.858m of income derived from Fees and Charges. 

Page 6



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 7 

 

 
2. Approve the charges for 2025/26 as detailed in Appendix 3 to be implemented 

from 1 April 2025. 
 

3. Note that as previously agreed, any changes to fees and charges proposed by 
Shropshire Community Leisure Trust Ltd. in relation to the outsourced leisure 
facilities will only be referred to Cabinet and Council for approval if the 

proposed increases exceed Consumer Price Index (CPI) for the preceding 
November. 

 
4. Note that the proposal in adult social care services for Assistive Technology 

and Maintenance Charges is under consultation.  

 
5. Revise housing rents as follows (subject to restrictions or exemptions identified 

in the Welfare Reform and Work Bill): 
 

I. Social Housing rents for 2025/26 are increased by 2.7% from 7th April 2025.  

II. Affordable rents for 2025/26 are increased by 2.7% from 7th April 2025. 
III.  Shared Ownership rents continue to be set at 2.75% of the outstanding 

capital value of the home at the time of sale and thereafter increased each 
April in accordance with the terms specified in the lease agreements. 

IV. All accommodation charges for 2025/26 are increased by 2.7% from 7th April 

2025. 
V. Service charges continue to be set based on actual cost 

 
82 Treasury Strategy 2025/26  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate 
Resources and Communities, and seconded by Councillor Brian Williams that the 

report of the Executive Director, Resources, and the recommendations contained 
therein, be received and agreed. 
 
RESOLVED: 

 

That Full Council: - 
 

1. Approve, with any comments, the Treasury Strategy for 2025/26, set out in 

appendix 1 (parts 1-3).  
 

2. Approve, with any comments, the Investment Strategy, set out in Appendix 1 
(part 4) in accordance with the DLUHC Guidance on Local Government 
Investments.  

 
3. Approve, with any comments, the Prudential Indicators, set out in Appendix 1 

(part 5), in accordance with the Local Government Act 2003.  
 

4. Approve, with any comments, the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy 

Statement, set out in Appendix 1 (part 6).  
 

Page 7



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 8 

 

5. Authorise the Section 151 Officer to exercise the borrowing powers contained 
in Section 3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and to manage the Council’s 

debt portfolio in accordance with the Treasury Strategy.  
 

6. Authorise the Section 151 Officer to use other Foreign Banks which meet 
Link’s creditworthiness policy as required.  

 

7. Authorise the Section 151 Officer to increase the PRS Loan Facility from 
£10m to up to £30m, pending Housing Supervisory Board consultation and 

cabinet approval. 
 
83 Shropshire Council Strategic Operating Model  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Lezley Picton, Leader and Portfolio Holder for Policy 

and Strategy, Improvement and Communications, and seconded by Councillor 
Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance, Corporate Resources and Communities 
that the report of the Chief Executive, and the recommendations contained therein, 

be received and agreed 
 

RESOLVED: 

 
That Council 

 
Notes the continued work being undertaken to resize and rightsize the Council to 

ensure delivery of the proposed new operating model, delivering a sustainable and 
agile organisation of the future and  
 

 Approves the proposed updated new operating model  

 In accordance with Article 12.2 (a) of Part 2 of the Constitution, receives this 

report of the Head of Paid Service outlining the proposed new staffing 
structure of the Council, including the number and grades of posts in the 

senior management team that will enable delivery of the new operating model 
which is designed to effectively discharge the functions that the Council is 
responsible for.  

 
84 Waste Prevention Strategy  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Ian Nellins,  Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder for 
Climate Change, Environment and Transport, and seconded by Councillor Roy 

Aldcroft that the report of the Assistant Director – Homes and Communities, and the 
recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

That Council 
 

1. Consider the Waste Prevention Strategy for Shropshire 2024-2030 in terms of 

its aim to reduce waste, reduce council expenditure on waste management, 
and deliver environmental, economic and social benefits.  

Page 8



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 9 

 

2. Adopt the Waste Prevention Strategy for Shropshire 2024-2030.  

3. Agree the recommendation of Economy and Environment Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee (12/09/24) for Shropshire Council to phase out the use of 
disposable cups on all its sites; and extend this approach to single use 
plastics where possible.  

4. Agree a relaxation to the HWRC booking system to remove the need for cars 

to book, thus enabling domestic users easier access to HWRC sites to 
separate their waste into the correct recycling streams.  

 
85 HRA 30 Year Business Plan  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Dean Carroll, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Assets, 
and seconded by Councillor Mark Jones, Portfolio Holder for Growth and 

Regeneration that the report of the Assistant Director – Homes and Communities, 
and the recommendations contained therein, be received and agreed 
 
RESOLVED 
 

That Council approve 
 

1. An increase in the HRA permitted borrowing envelope from £122m to a 

maximum of £174m as per the schedules in section 7 of HRA Business Plan 
to fund a new development programme to deliver 509 units in the next five 

years.  
2. The reletting of properties at target rent at the change of tenancy in line with 

government guidelines, delivering a saving of £5.9m over the life of the current 

plan, the equivalent of funding 50 new affordable homes, and allowing STaR 
Housing to limit their additional borrowing ask to the maximum of £174m.  

3. The setting of HRA budgets in line with the overall programme values as set 
out in tables in section five. 

 
86 Proposal to replace the Children’s Improvement Board with a Children's 

Partnership Ambitions Board   

 
It was proposed by Councillor Kirstie Hurst-Knight, Portfolio Holder for Children and 
Education, and seconded by Councillor Peggy Mullock that the report of the 

Executive Director of People and the recommendations contained therein, be 
received and agreed 
 
RESOLVED 

 

3.1. That Council agree the Participation and Impact Strategy for young people and 
note the ambitions set out in the strategy  

 
3.2. Endorse the Council’s commitment to ensuring that children and young people 

have influence over decisions and actions on services that affect them 

 
 

Page 9



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 10 

 

87 Children’s Participation and Impact Strategy  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Kirstie Hurst-Knight, Portfolio Holder for Children and 
Education, and seconded by Councillor Nick Bardsley that the report of the Executive 

Director of People and the recommendations contained therein, be received and 
agreed 
 
RESOLVED 

 

That Council approves the replacement of the Children’s Improvement Board with 
the establishment of a Children’s Partnership Ambitions Board with the Draft Terms 
of Reference set out at Appendix 1 and Draft Action Plan set out at Appendix 2. 

 
88 Annual Report of Portfolio Holder Finance Corporate Resources and 

Communities  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Gwilym Butler, Portfolio Holder for Finance Corporate 

Resources and Communities that the report and the recommendations therein be 
received and agreed. 

 
Councillor Butler presented and amplified his report and responded to questions, 
concerns and comments. 

 
89 Annual Report of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 
Councillor Peggy Mullock, Chair of the People Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
presented the annual report of the Committee for 2023-24. She outlined the work that 

had been carried out by the Committee and thanked members of the committee and 
officers for all their work. 

 
 
Members noted the contents of the report 

 
90 Annual Report of the Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Public Health  

 
It was proposed by Councillor Cecilia Motley, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care 
and Public Health that the report, a copy of which is attached to the signed minutes, 

and the recommendations therein be received and agreed. 
 

 
Councillor Motley presented and amplified her report and responded to questions, 
concerns and comments. 

 
91 Appointment to Committees  

 
It was proposed by the Chairman Councillor Vince Hunt and seconded by the Vice 
Chairman Councillor Brian Williams that the amendments to committee membership 

as set out in the agenda papers be agreed. 
 

 

Page 10



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 11 

 

RESOLVED: 

 

That the amendments to committee membership as set out in the agenda papers be 
agreed. 

 
92 Motions  

 
Motion received from Councillor David Vasmer and supported by the Liberal 
Democrat Group  

 
North West Relief Road Inquiry 

  

1. The original cost of the North West Relief Road was £71m in 2019 and, on 
this basis, the Government pledged funding of £54m with a clear warning that 

any cost increases would be the responsibility of Shropshire Council. That 
meant the total cost to Shropshire Council at that time was estimated at £17m.  
 

2. In 2021 on the basis of the Outline Business Case the cost of the NWRR was 
estimated at £81m meaning that the cost to Shropshire Council had now risen 

to £27m  
 

3. Before Christmas Shropshire's External Auditor confirmed that the cost of the 

NWRR had now gone up to £178m and Shropshire Council's contribution to 
£124m  

 
4. The Environment Agency were never happy about the route of the road since 

a major roundabout junction was placed directly over ground from which much 

of Shrewsbury's water is drawn and have therefore been very reluctant to 
support the application because the spillage of any toxic substance would 

make the ground water unusable while piling work could also damage the 
town's water supply 

 

5. The NWRR will be a major contributor to the release of carbon which was 
underestimated when the road was first planned. Recently Shropshire Council 

has been forced to admit that the contribution has more than doubled from 
26,711 tonnes of carbon to 55,904. Originally it had been estimated that the 
scheme's impact could be mitigated by 2030 but now Shropshire has asked 

the Northern Planning Committee to revise a condition so that it has until 2050 
to offset the road's emissions.  

 
6. A substantial amount of money has already been spent on a road that does 

not have planning permission or an approved Full Business Case. In the 

current budget there is provision for £44.8m to be spent on the NWRR  
 

7. That Shropshire Council has commissioned utility diversion work before the 
NWRR has secured a decision planning notice or a commitment from the 
Government for extra funding. 

 
This Council Notes  

 

Page 11



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 12 

 

1. Shropshire Council has failed to hit numerous deadlines so that a road that 
was originally planned for completion in 2020 has not been started  

 
2. Recently Shropshire Council's External Auditor was highly critical of 

Shropshire Council for failing to make plans in the event of the Road being 
cancelled and for failing to oversee the planning and preparations for the 
Road properly.  

 
This Council will appoint a North West Relief Road Inquiry, funded from the 

development reserve and the invest to save reserve which contain in total £7.9m.to 
consider:  
  

 
1. Management of the project   

 
2. The decision-making process  

 

3. Whether there was sufficient scrutiny and challenge within the Council   
 

4. Whether there was effective separation of powers between the Council as a 
developer and as a planning authority  

 

5. Whether alternative options were considered, both with regard to traffic 
mitigations for the town – especially given the additional travel demands likely 

to result in the South East of Shrewsbury from planned development in the 
Draft Local Plan, and with regard to the possibility of Government funding not 
being forthcoming.  

 
6. Whether a review of the road was undertaken once the Council had agreed to 

reach carbon net zero by 2030              
 
This was seconded by Councillor Rob Wilson. 

 
By way of amendment Councillor Julian Dean proposed the following be added to 

the motion: 
 
Council further resolves to require the administration to develop ‘off-ramp’ 

proposals between now and the end of April that will protect the council taxpayers 
of Shropshire from potential financial burden of a failed project whilst addressing 

the need for improved transport infrastructure and travel options that will reduce 
congestion and provide opportunities that are not car dependent.  
 

In particular, the administration should request discussions with the Department for 
Transport that put forward Shrewsbury Moves proposals and proposals to improve 

some edge of town roundabouts as alternatives to the North West Relief Road such 
that continue to protect council tax payers from potential repayment of money 
already spent, and highlight to Government how Shrewsbury Moves in particular 

aligns with a sustainable transport future for the town and county in a way that the 
North West Relief Road does not. 

 

Page 12



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 13 

 

Councillor Vasmer indicated that he was willing to accept the amendment. 
 

By way of amendment Councillor Rosemary Dartnall proposed that the paragraph – 
“This Council will appoint a North West Relief Road Inquiry, funded from the 

development reserve and the invest to save reserve which contain in total £7.9m.to 
consider” be amended to read ”This Council will appoint a North West Relief Road 
Task and Finish Group.to consider” 

 
This was seconded by Councillor Tony Parsons. 

 
On taking a vote Councillor Dartnall’s amendment was not supported. 
 

On taking a vote Councillor Vasmer’s motion as amended by Councillor Dean was 
not supported 

 
Motion received from Councillor Bernie Bentick and supported by the Liberal 
Democrat Group  

 
 

This Council Notes:  
 

1. The decision of the NHS Shropshire, Telford and Wrekin Integrated Care 

Board (STW ICB) to announce the GP Out of Hours Contract preferred 
provider status to Medvivo in preference to the existing operator, ShropDoc.  

 
2. The extension of the standstill period after announcement of the preferred 

provider due to challenge of the procurement decision.  

 
3. That Medvivo is a profit generating enterprise that is a subsidiary or partner 

of the multinational HealthHero organisation which markets Telemedicine.  
 

4. That ShropDoc is a well known and respected not for profit local service, with 

almost 30 years’ experience and an outstanding CQC rating.   
 

5. That a local petition called “Save Our Shropdoc” gained over 12,000 
signatures in 10 days.  

 

6. That as Medvivo/HealthHero advertise that they are Telemedicine 
organisations, from available information it is unclear how they will provide 

the same volume and quality of service, at a lower cost than the current 
contract, while also making a profit.  

 

   
 

This Council Resolves to ask the STW ICB:  
 

1. If the contract has not been issued, to halt the current procurement 

process until further scrutiny has been carried out on the timings of the 
previous contracts, to whom they were awarded, to confirm the precise 

Page 13



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 14 

 

amount of any reduction in the value of the proposed contract and how this 
will affect the existing service provision.  

 
2. Whether the contract has been awarded or not, to fully engage with 

Shropshire's residents and health watchdogs before drawing up any revised 
contracts for GP and related Out of Hours Services and any new services.   

 

3. To report every 3 months to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on how the Out of Hours contract is performing, including the 

number of referrals into Secondary Care, face-to-face Primary Care Centre 
consultations, home visits and telecare consultations, plus the volume and 
type of any complaints and adverse outcomes.  

 
4. To provide detailed information of how the contract handover period will be 

managed and the governance systems in place to assure quality of service, 
avoid delays and avoid patient harm due to the new provider’s unfamiliarity 
with providing an Out of Hours service in Shropshire, its health systems and 

its geography. 
 

By way of amendment Councillor Elner asked that the words “every three months” in 
paragraph 3 be replaced with “regularly”.  Councillor Bentick indicated that he was 
willing to accept this. 

 
On taking a vote it was RESOLVED: 

 
That the Council ask the STW ICB:  
 

1. If the contract has not been issued, to halt the current procurement 
process until further scrutiny has been carried out on the timings of the 

previous contracts, to whom they were awarded, to confirm the precise 
amount of any reduction in the value of the proposed contract and how this 
will affect the existing service provision.  

 
2. Whether the contract has been awarded or not, to fully engage with 

Shropshire's residents and health watchdogs before drawing up any revised 
contracts for GP and related Out of Hours Services and any new services.   

 

3. To report regularly to the Joint Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
how the Out of Hours contract is performing, including the number of 

referrals into Secondary Care, face-to-face Primary Care Centre 
consultations, home visits and telecare consultations, plus the volume and 
type of any complaints and adverse outcomes.  

 
4. To provide detailed information of how the contract handover period will be 

managed and the governance systems in place to assure quality of service, 
avoid delays and avoid patient harm due to the new provider’s unfamiliarity 
with providing an Out of Hours service in Shropshire, its health systems and 

its geography. 
 

Page 14



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 15 

 

Motion received from Councillor Rosemary Dartnall and supported by the 
Labour Group 

 
Local Government Pay.  

 
A FULLY FUNDED, PROPER PAY RISE FOR COUNCIL AND SCHOOL 
WORKERS  

 
This council notes:  

 

 Local government has endured central government funding cuts of more than 
50% since 2010. Between 2010 and 2020, councils lost 60p out of every £1 

they have received from central government. Research by UNISON has 
shown that councils across England, Wales and Scotland are facing a 

collective funding shortfall of more than £4bn by the financial year 2024/25 
and a cumulative funding gap of £8bn by 2025/26. The last Government’s 
‘levelling up’ pots of money did little to help  

 

 Council and school workers kept our communities safe through the pandemic, 

often putting themselves at considerable risk as they worked to protect public 
health, provide quality housing, ensure our children continue to be educated, 

and look after older and vulnerable people. 
 

 Since 2010, the local government workforce has endured years of pay 

restraint with the majority of pay points losing at least 25 per cent of their 
value since 2009/10. Staff have endured the worst cost of living crisis in a 

generation.  
 

 At the same time, workers have experienced ever-increasing workloads and 

persistent job insecurity. Across the UK, 900,000 jobs have been lost in local 
government since June 2010 – a reduction of more than 30 per cent. Local 

government has arguably been hit by more severe job losses than any other 
part of the public sector. There has been a disproportionate impact on women, 
with women making up more than three-quarters of the local government 

workforce.  
 

 Recent research shows that if the Government were to fully fund the unions’ 
2025 pay claim, around half of the money would be recouped thanks to 

increased tax revenue, reduced expenditure on benefits and tax credits, and 
increased consumer spending in the local economy.  

 

This council believes:  
 

1. Local government workers keep our communities clean and safe, look after 
those in need and keep our towns and cities running.  

 

2. Without the professionalism and dedication of our staff, the council services 
our residents rely on would not be deliverable.  

 

Page 15



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 16 

 

3. Local government workers deserve a proper real-terms pay increase. The 
Government needs to take responsibility and fully fund this increase; it should 

not put the burden on local authorities whose funding has been cut to the 
bone and who were not offered adequate support through the Covid-19 

pandemic.  
 

This council resolves to:  

 
A. Subject to paragraphs B and C below, support the pay claim submitted by 

UNISON, GMB and Unite on behalf of council and school workers for an 
increase of £3,000 on all pay points.  

 

B. Call on the Local Government Association to make urgent representations 
to central government to fund the NJC pay claim.  

 
C. Write to the Chancellor and Secretary of State to call for a pay increase for 

local government workers to be funded with new money from central 

government.  
 

D. Meet with local NJC union representatives to convey support for the pay 
claim and consider practical ways in which the council can support the 
campaign.  

 
E. Encourage all local government workers to join a union 

 
The was seconded by Councillor Caroline Bagnall. 
 

On taking a vote the motion was not supported 
 
93 Report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority  

 
It was proposed by Councillor David Minnery that the report of the Shropshire and 

Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority, be received and noted. 
 
 RESOLVED: 

 
  

That the report of the Shropshire and Wrekin Fire and Rescue Authority be noted. 
 
94 Exclusion of Press and Public  

 
RESOLVED: 

 
That, in accordance with the provisions of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 

1972 and Paragraph 10.4 [3] of the Council’s Access to Information Rules, the public 
and press be excluded from the meeting during consideration of the following items 

 

 
 

 

Page 16



Minutes of the Council held on 27 February 2025 

 

 
 
Contact: Tim Ward on 01743 257713 17 

 

95 Exempt Minutes  

 
RESOLVED:  

 

That the Exempt Minutes of the meeting held on 12 December 2024, as circulated 
with the agenda papers, be approved and signed as a correct record. 

 
96 Warm Homes Funding Bid  

 

It was proposed by Councillor Dean Carroll, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Assets, 
and seconded by Councillor Ian Nellins, Deputy Leader and Portfolio Holder For 
Climate Change, Environment and Transport that the report of the Assistant Director 

– Homes and Communities, and the recommendations contained therein, be 
received and agreed 

 
RESOLVED 

 

That the recommendations contained in the report be agreed 
 

 
Signed  (Chairman) 

 
 
Date:  

  

 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



Council May 22 2025 – Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors 

Contact:  Andy Begley on 01743 258915 1 

 

 Committee and Date 

 
Council 
 

22 May 2025 

  
 

Public 

 

   

 
 

 

RETURN OF ELECTION OF SHROPSHIRE 
COUNCILLORS 

Responsible Officer: Andy Begley 

email andy.begley@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  01743 258915 

  

 
(Please note that this report lists the description of Councillors as it was at the day of the 
declaration of the election results) 
 
 
I, ANDY BEGLEY, the Returning Officer for Shropshire, DO HEREBY CERTIFY AND RETURN 
that the persons ELECTED as SHROPSHIRE COUNCILLORS for the several Electoral Divisions 
of the said Shropshire Council are as follows: 
 
 

Electoral Division Name Description 

Abbey JAMES DANIELS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Albrighton NIGEL PETER LUMBY 
 

Conservative 

Bagley BENEDICT JOHN 
ALEXANDER JEPHCOTT 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Battlefield HARRY HANCOCK-DAVIES 
 

Reform UK 

Bayston Hill TERESA ANNE TRICKETT 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Belle Vue MARY KATE HALLIDAY 
 

Labour 

Bicton Heath JONATHAN TANDY 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Bishop’s Castle RUTH MARGARET 
HOUGHTON 

Liberal Democrats 

Page 19

Agenda Item 6



Council May 22 2025 – Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors 

Contact:  Andy Begley on 01743 258915 2 

 

 

Bridgnorth Castle PETER HUSEMANN 
 

Reform UK 

Bridgnorth East SUSAN ELIZABETH EDEN 
 

Reform UK 

Bridgnorth South and 
Alveley 

COLIN TAYLOR 
 
 

Liberal Democrats 
 

Bridgnorth West and 
Tasley 

RACHEL ELIZABETH 
CONNOLLY 
 

Independent 
 

Broseley CAROLINE EMMA BAGNALL 
 

Labour 

Brown Clee GEORGE JAMES 
HOLLYHEAD 
 

Reform UK 

Burnell CHRISTOPHER JOHN 
FRANCIS NAYLOR 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Castlefields & 
Ditherington 
 

ALAN NEIL MOSLEY Labour 

Cheswardine NEIL FREDERICK BENTLEY 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Chirbury & Worthen HEATHER MARY KIDD 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Claverley and Worfield DAWN AMANDA HUSEMANN 
 

Reform UK 

Clee CHARLES SHACKERLEY-
BENNETT 
 

Reform UK 

Cleobury Mortimer  PAMELA CHRISTINE DAVIES 
 

Reform UK 

Clun SAMUEL JAMES WALMSLEY 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Column and Sutton ROSEMARY LUCY WINIFRED 
DARTNALL 
 

Labour 

Copthorne ROBERT MICHAEL WILSON 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Corvedale COLIN ANDREW STANFORD 
 

Conservative 

Craven Arms JOSHUA MILES DICKIN 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Ellesmere Urban ROSIE HARRIET RADFORD 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Harlescott RHYS GRATTON 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Highley SHARON ANN RITCHIE-
SIMMONS 
 

Reform UK 

Hodnet DONNA EDMUNDS 
 
 

Reform UK 
 

Llanymynech DUNCAN KEITH 
BORROWMAN 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Page 20



Council May 22 2025 – Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors 

Contact:  Andy Begley on 01743 258915 3 

 

Longden ROGER ARTHUR EVANS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Loton EDWARD ALAN POTTER 
 

Conservative 

Ludlow East BEVERLEY ANN ELAINE 
WAITE 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Ludlow North ANDREW BODDINGTON 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Ludlow South ELIZABETH VIVIENNE PARRY 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Market Drayton East 
and Rural 

THOMAS HIRWAEN DAINTY 
 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Market Drayton North 
 

JEREMY STUART 
BLANDFORD 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Market Drayton South DAVID JAMES MINNERY 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Meole BERNARD BENTICK 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Monkmoor SLAWOMIR ADAM FEJFER 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Much Wenlock DANIEL MICHAEL THOMAS 
 

Conservative 

Oswestry North WENDY RHIANNON OWEN 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Oswestry North East JAMES WILLIAM OWEN 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Oswestry South DUNCAN ALISTAIR KERR 
 

Green 

Oswestry South East MARK ANTHONY OWEN 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Otely and Reabrook VICTORIA JANE MOORE 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Porthill JULIAN DAVID GEOFFREY 
DEAN 
 

Green 

Prees MALCOLM ERIC MYLES-
HOOK 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Quarry & Coton HIll ALEXANDER SIMON 
WAGNER 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Radbrook CHRISTOPHER JOHN LEMON 
 

Green 

Rea Valley NICHOLAS JULIAN HIGNETT 
 

Conservative 

Ruyton & Baschurch ROBERT JOHN JOHNS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Selattyn and Gobowen CRAIG DAVID EMERY 
 

Green 

Severn Valley SUSAN ANN COLEMAN 
 

Conservative 

Shawbury ALISON WILLIAMS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Shifnal North THOMAS CLAYTON Reform UK 

Page 21



Council May 22 2025 – Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors 

Contact:  Andy Begley on 01743 258915 4 

 

 

Shifnal Rural ELIZABETH DELPHINE 
BARKER 
 

Reform UK 

Shifnal South  EDWARD FRANCIS BIRD 
 

Conservative 

St Martin’s  BRIAN RICHARD EVANS 
 
CARL MICHAEL ROWLEY 
 

Reform UK 
 
Reform UK 

St Oswald ANDREW DAVIS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Stottesdon, Kinlet and 
Hopton Wafers 

DAVID SIDNEY ARTHUR 
DAVIES 
 

Reform UK 

Sundorne and Old 
Heath 

AMANDA JANE DUNCAN 
 
 

Reform UK 

Tern BRENDAN JOHN MALLON 
 

Reform UK 

The Meres SARAH JANE MARSTON 
 

Liberal Democrats 

The Strettons MARK EDWARD ERNEST 
MORRIS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Underdale DAVID VASMER 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Wem  GARY GROVES 
 
ALAN JOHN HOLFORD 
 

Liberal Democrats 
 
Liberal Democrats 

Whitchurch North  JAMES ANDREW HALL 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Whitchurch South GREGORY KRIANGKRAI 
EBBS 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Whitchurch West ABDUL SHAMIM 
 

Liberal Democrats 

Whittington DAVID WALKER 
 

Liberal Democrats 

 

 

 

Page 22



Council 22 May 2025 - Appointment Of Cabinet Members, Deputy Portfolio Holders & Their Portfolios  

Contact: Tim Collard   1 

 

   

 Committee and Date 
 
Council  

 
22 May 2025 

 Item 

 

 
 

 

 
Public 

 

   

 
 

 

APPOINTMENT OF CABINET MEMBERS, 
DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS & THEIR 

PORTFOLIOS 

Responsible Officer: Tim Collard - Service Director – Legal and Governance 

email: tim.collard@shropshire.gov.uk Tel:  01743 252756 

  

 

 

1. Synopsis 
 
This report sets out the Leader’s proposals for the appointment of Cabinet Members 
and Deputy Cabinet Members, their portfolios and remits.  

 

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
In accordance with The Local Government and Public Involvement in Health Act 2007, 

the Executive arrangements adopted for Shropshire Council means it is for the Leader 
not only to appoint the Cabinet but also to decide how the Executive functions are to be 

discharged.  
 

The Leader therefore presents the contents of this report for information accordingly.  

 
 

 

Page 23

Agenda Item 9



Council 22 May 2025 - Appointment Of Cabinet Members, Deputy Portfolio Holders & Their Portfolios  

Contact: Tim Collard   2 

 

3. Recommendations 

A. That the appointment of Cabinet Members and the allocation of titles and remits of 
portfolios, as set out in Appendix 1 to this report, be noted.  

B. That the appointment of Deputy Cabinet Members and the allocation of titles and 

remits of portfolios, as set out in Appendix 1 to this report, be noted.  

C.  (i) That the continuation of the discharge of the functions of the Council in 
relation to West Mercia Energy through the West Mercia Energy Joint Committee and 
the West Mercia Energy Pension Committee be noted and the Council’s Executive 

Member representatives be noted, namely Councillor Roger Evans and Councillor 
Rob Wilson serving on the Joint Committee.  

 (ii) That the continuation of the discharge of functions through the Health and 

Well-Being Board be noted and the Council’s Executive representatives be noted, 
namely: Councillors Ruth Houghton, Bernie Bentick and Heather Kidd 

  

Report 
 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

 
4.1  This report is compatible with the Human Rights Act 1998 

 

5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1. Cabinet Members and their Deputies are paid a Special Responsibility Allowance 
which is set out in the Scheme of Allowances 

 
 

6. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

6.1. This report will have no obvious impact in terms of climate change 

 
 

7. Background 
 

7.1  Under Shropshire Council’s Executive Procedure Rules, it is for the Leader of the 

Council to determine the membership of their Cabinet and to present to Council a 
document containing the requisite information.  This document contains the names, 

and electoral divisions of the people to be appointed to the Executive, the extent of 
any authority delegated to Executive members individually, the terms of reference 
and constitution of any Executive Committees as the Leader proposes, and the 

nature and extent of any delegation of Executive functions under a joint arrangement. 
These are all Leader appointments, in accordance with the legislation. 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 24



Council 22 May 2025 - Appointment Of Cabinet Members, Deputy Portfolio Holders & Their Portfolios  

Contact: Tim Collard   3 

 

 
 
 

 

8. Additional Information 
 

8.1. The proposals in respect of the appointments to the Cabinet and the titles and 
remits of the various portfolios of the Cabinet and Deputy Cabinet Members 

together with the names of those Members, are set out in Appendix 1.   
 

8.2. Currently West Mercia Energy exercises executive functions through its Joint 
Committee and the Leader proposes to maintain these arrangements and will 
appoint two Cabinet members to the Committee.  

 
8.3 Currently Executive functions are also exercised through the Health and Well-

being Board.  The Leader will appoint three Cabinet members to serve on the 
Board. 
 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Executive Arrangements under the Local Government and Public Involvement in 
Health Act 2007 – Paper to Council 19 December 2008. 

Local Member:  All 

Appendices  

1. Appointment of Cabinet & Deputy Cabinet Members, Member Portfolios and 
remit.  

 
 

  

Page 25



Council 22 May 2025 - Appointment Of Cabinet Members, Deputy Portfolio Holders & Their Portfolios  

Contact: Tim Collard   4 

 

 
APPENDIX 1  

APPOINTMENT OF CABINET MEMBERS AND  

AGREEMENT OF MEMBER PORTFOLIOS 
  

1. APPOINTMENT OF CABINET MEMBERS:  
  

  NAME   ELECTORAL DIVISION  

1  Heather Kidd Chirbury And Worthen 

2  Alex Wagner Quarry & Coton HIll 

3  Roger Evans Longden 

4  Ruth Houghton Bishops Castle 

5  Andy Hall Whitchurch North 

6  David Walker Whittington 

7  David Vasmer Underdale 

8  James Owen Oswestry North East 

9  Rob Wilson Copthorne 

10  Bernie Bentick Meole 

  

 
 

PORTFOLIOS  
  
  

  PORTFOLIO  

  

NAME OF CABINET MEMBER  

1.  Leader And Housing  Heather Kidd 

2.  Deputy Leader, Communications 
And Communities 

Alex Wagner 

3.  Finance Roger Evans 

4.  Social Care (Adults) Ruth Houghton 

5.  Children And Education Andy Hall 

6.  Housing And Planning David Walker 

7.  Highways And Environment David Vasmer 

8.  Culture And Leisure James Owen 

9.  Transport And Economic Growth Rob Wilson 

 10.  Health Bernie Bentick 

  

  
2. DEPUTY LEADER  

  
Councillor Alex Wagner will act as Deputy Leader of the Council.  
  

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 26



Council 22 May 2025 - Appointment Of Cabinet Members, Deputy Portfolio Holders & Their Portfolios  

Contact: Tim Collard   5 

 

 
 
 

AGREEMENT OF DEPUTY PORTFOLIOS   
  

  
APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY PORTFOLIO HOLDERS  
  

  NAME ELECTORAL DIVISION 

1.  Joshua Dickin Craven Arms 

2.  Sho Abdul Whitchurch West 

3.  Neil Bentley Cheswardine 

4. Colin Taylor Bridgnorth South and 
Alveley 

5. Tom Dainty Market Drayton East and 
Rural 

6. Jeremy Blandford Market Drayton North 

7 Robert Jones Ruyton and Baschurch 

8 Sarah Marston The Meres 

  

  
PORTFOLIOS  

  
.   

  PORTFOLIO HOLDER  DEPUTY PORTFOLIO 

HOLDER  

 Alex Wagner Joshua Dicken 

(Communities) 

 Roger Evans Sho Abdul 

 Ruth Houghton Sarah Marston 

 Andy Hall Neil Bentley 

 David Walker Colin Taylor 

 David Vasmer Tom Dainty 

 James Owen Jeremy Blandford 

 Rob Wilson Robert Jones 

   

  
 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Council 22 May 2025 Constitution of Committees and the Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 1 

 

  

Annual Council 
 
 

22 May 2025 

 Item 
 

 

 
 

 

Public 

 

   

 
 

CONSTITUTION OF COMMITTEES AND THE 
ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL 

GROUPS 

Responsible Officer: Tim Collard 

email: tim.collard@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel:  (01743) 252756 

  

 

1. Synopsis 
 

1.1 This report deals with the overall constitution of committees, the overall entitlement of 

seats for each of the political groups and the proportionate allocation of seats between 
the groups across all committees.  

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 The provisions of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 require the Council to 

review the representation of each political group on committees, panels etc. at each 

annual meeting or as soon as practicable after that meeting.  The regulations require that 
all Scrutiny, Standing and Regulatory Committees are politically balanced across the total 

number of committee places.  Subject to that overriding requirement, each committee 
must also be politically balanced, as far as it is reasonably practicable.  

  

2.2 The Executive (Cabinet) is not subject to the political balance rules.  

  

2.3 Advisory Committees and other ad hoc bodies and groups are not subject to the political 
balance rules either, but traditionally political proportionality has been applied to them 
outside the overall aggregate balance referred to in paragraph 2.1 above.  

  
 
 

 

Page 29

Agenda Item 10



Council 22 May 2025 Constitution of Committees and the Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 2 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1. That the Council confirms the constitution of committees and the allocation of seats to 

each of the political groups for the 2025/26 municipal year and the allocation of seats 
between the political groups, as set out in Appendices 1 and 2 to this report.  

Report 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

4.1. The Council is obliged to ensure that the membership of committees and related bodies is 
proportionate to individual group membership.  

 

5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1. The allocation of seats on Committees will have no obvious financial implications. 

 

6. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

6.1. The allocation of seats on Committees will have no obvious impact in terms of climate 

change. 
 

7. Background 
 

7.1. The Council is requested to approve the overall constitution of committees.  

 

7.2. Most of the Committees had been allocated an even number of seats when the political 
balance was last adjusted by the Council in December 2024 to reflect that no group had 
an overall majority.  Where possible the number of seats available on each committee 

has now been adjusted to an odd number to assist with the proportionality of the allocation 
to each political group because of one party now having a clear majority. 
 

7.3. This requires 108 seats to be allocated proportionately across all committees and the 
Council is requested to approve the overall constitution as set out below: 

 

Committee Name  Seats per 
Committee  

Transformation and Improvement Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
11 

People Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee 11 

Economy and Environment Overview and Scrutiny Committee  11 
Pensions Committee  4 

Audit Committee  5 

Strategic Licensing Committee  15 

Standards Committee  

Southern Planning Committee  
Northern Planning Committee  
Housing Supervisory Board  

9 

11 

11 

9 

Total  108 

 

Page 30



Council 22 May 2025 Constitution of Committees and the Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 3 

 

 
 
 

8. Allocation of Seats 
 

8.1. The Council is required to approve the allocation of seats to the political groups for the 
coming year.    

  

8.2 The maximum number of seats available to each group within the political balance rules 
will be:  

  
Group Name  Seats per 

Group  

  
Liberal Democrats 62 

Reform 

Conservatives  
Green and Progressive Independent 

22 

10 
7 

Labour  6 

Non Aligned 1 

Total  108 

 

8.3 The proportionate allocation of seats to the political groups across all committees is set 
out in Appendix 1 and the proposed allocation of these totals to individual members, in 

accordance with the wishes of the respective Group Leaders, is set out in Appendix 2 to 
this report (To Follow).  

  

8.4 The Council is entitled to 10 seats on the Shropshire and Wrekin Combined Fire 
Authority.  Under the present arrangements, the Liberal Democrat Group is entitled to 6 

seats, the Reform Group 2 seats, the Conservative Group 1 seat and the Green and 
Progressive Independent Group 1 seat.   

  

8.5 The proposed allocation of seats meets the legal requirements, however, should the 
Council wish, it is possible to agree allocations which are not strictly politically balanced 

if no Member dissents.    
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Regulations made thereunder.  

Local Member:  All 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Constitution of Committees and Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

Appendix 2 – Proposed Allocation of Seats to Political Groups (To Follow)  

 

Page 31



Council 22 May 2025 Constitution of Committees and the Allocation of Seats to Political Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 4 

 

 

Page 32



 1 

UPDATED - APPENDIX 1 
 
 
 

ALLOCATION OF SEATS TO POLITICAL GROUPS 
 
 

Composition of the Council Lib 
Dem 

Reform
UK 

Cons Green 
& PI 

Lab Ind Total 

 42 15 7 5 4 1 74 

 

SCRUTINY 
 

 Lib 
Dem 

Reform 
UK 

Cons Green 
& PI 

Lab Ind Total 

Transformation and Improvement 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

7 2 1 0 1 0 11 

People Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 6 2 1 1 

1 
0 11 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 

6 3 1 1 0 0 
11 

Economy and Environment 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

6 2 1 1 0 1 
11 

        

 

STANDING AND REGULATORY 

 

 Lib 
Dem 

Reform
UK 

Cons Green 
& PI 

Lab Ind Total 

Pensions Committee 3 1 0 0 0 0 4 

Audit Committee 3 1 0 0 1 0 5 

Standards 5 2 1 1 0 0 9 

Strategic Licensing Committee 9 3 2 1 0 0 15 

Northern Planning Committee 6 2 1 1 1 0 11 

Southern Planning Committee 6 2 1 1 1 0 11 

Housing Supervisory Board 5 2 1 0 1 0 9 

        

Aggregate No Seats Required 62 22 10 7 6 1 108 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



 

   
 

 Committee and Date 

 
Council 
 

22nd May 2025 

 Item 
 

 

 
 

 

Public 

 

   

 
 

 

Appointment to Outside Bodies,  
Committees and Groups 

Responsible Officer: Tim Collard - Service Director - Legal and Governance 

email: tim.collard@shropshire.gov.uk  
 

Tel:  01743 252756 

  

 

 

1. Synopsis 
 

This report sets out the requirements for appointing Shropshire Council representatives 
to the various outside bodies, committees and groups.  

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
Council is asked to make appointments to outside bodies, committees and groups 
where urgent appointments are required. It is also requested to agree a process for the 

consideration of appointments to the remaining committees, groups and outside bodies 
prior to confirmation of the appointments at Council in July. 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1. To agree urgent appointments to the outside bodies, committees and groups set 
out in Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.2. That, the Chief Executive appoints members to the remaining outside bodies, 

committees and groups following consultation with a small working group 
comprised of Group Leaders or their nominated representatives, and that any 
bodies where agreement cannot be reached by the Working Group be referred 

Page 35

Agenda Item 11



Council 22 May 2025 Appointment to Outside Bodies, Committees and Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 2 

 

back to Council for decision. These appointments will be reported to the July 
meeting of Council.  

 

3.3. That, the Chief Executive in consultation with appropriate Group Leaders be 

authorised to agree any other appointment that may be necessary as a matter of 
urgency prior to the meeting of the working group referenced in paragraph 3.2. 

 

 

Report 
 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

It is important to agree urgent appointments at the 2025 meeting as representation will 
be required at meetings due to take place in the following weeks.  

 

 

5. Financial Implications 
 

The appointment to outside bodies, committees and groups will have no obvious 
financial implications. 

 

6. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

The appointment to outside bodies, committees and groups will have no obvious impact 
in terms of climate change. 

 
 

7. Background 
 

7.1. Shropshire Council is asked to make appointments to various committees, groups 
and over 50 outside bodies. The outside bodies range from national, regional and 
county organisations down to local charitable bodies.  Under the Constitution, 

appointments to outside bodies are the responsibility of Council at their Annual 
meeting.  

 
7.2. Some appointments need to be made urgently as meetings are scheduled for late 

May and June.  National and Regional Local Government Associations also need 

to know representation in order to set political balance.   
 

7.3. It should be noted that all the outside bodies appointed to in 2021 have been 
approached to see if they still require Council representation and the list included 

as Appendix 1 has been updated to reflect their responses.  The lists of remaining 
outside bodies, committees and groups requiring representation have likewise 

been amended. 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 36



Council 22 May 2025 Appointment to Outside Bodies, Committees and Groups  

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 3 

 

 

8. Conclusions 
 

8.1. Those outside bodies, Committees and groups where urgent appointments are 
required are set out in Appendix 1 to this report.  Council is asked to agree 

appointments to these bodies.  (Names to be circulated at the meeting.) 
 

8.2. It is then recommended that the remaining appointments are appointed by the 

Chief Executive following consultation with a small working group comprising of 
Group Leaders or their nominated representatives, and that any bodies where 

agreement cannot be reached by the Group be referred back to Council for 
decision. The list of agreed appointments will be reported to the July Council 
meeting. 

 

8.3. If any further appointments arise of an urgent nature before the meeting of the 
working group, it is proposed that the Chief Executive, in consultation with Group 

Leaders, be authorised to agree any appointments required as a matter of 
urgency. 

 

 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Schedule of Outside Bodies 

Local Member:  Not applicable 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Schedule of Outside Bodies, committees and groups where 
urgent appointments are required to be made at this meeting of the Council 

 

 
 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix 1 
 
Nominations Required Urgently to the Following Bodies 

 

Outside Body Required Representation 

County Council Network Council 

 
Up to 4 Members  
 

The Leader is typically nominated 
alongside three others. No requirement 
to be politically balanced but the CCN 

ask Councils to be mindful of the need to 
achieve political balance when making 

nominations. 
 
Four on-line meetings over the course of 

the year (typically January, March, June 
and September). 

 
Local Government Association – 
General Assembly 
 

 

Up to 4 Members  
 
No requirement to be politically balanced  

 
1 meeting a year  

SPARSE (Rural Services Network) 

 
1 and 1 Substitute  

 
No requirement to be politically balanced 
 

There are 4 meetings a year, all held 
online via zoom. 

West Mercia Police and Crime Panel 

 
4 – Members (1 Substantive Member & 3 

co-opted) 
4 – Alternates/Subs 
 

Politically balanced across the West 
Mercia area we are notified of the 

required political allocation after 
elections. (we are expecting to be 
notified of the requirement imminently) 

 
4 to 5 public meetings a year usually held 

in Worcestershire 
 

West Midlands Combined Authority 

Board 
 

1 – Member  

 
The Leader is typically nominated. 
 

6 meetings a year 
West Midlands Combined Authority – 
Audit, Risk and Assurance Committee 

 

1 – Member  
 

The Committee feel it is beneficial for the 
relevant Portfolio Holder to be appointed. 
 

4 meetings a year 

Page 39



2 

 

Outside Body Required Representation 

West Midlands Combined Authority – 
Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

 

1 – Member  
 

No requirement to be politically balanced 
 

7 meetings a year 
West Midlands Combined Authority – 
Transport Delivery Overview & 
Scrutiny Committee 

 

1 – Member 
 
The Committee feel it is beneficial for the 

relevant Portfolio Holder to be appointed. 
 

7 meetings a year 
West Midlands Employers 
Shareholders Board 

 

1 – Member  
 

The Leader or relevant Porfolio Holder is 
typically nominated 
 

3 meetings a year 
W Norton Foundation - needed for 

Annual meeting in June 
1 – Member  
 

Appointee typically the local member for 
the Craven Arms Electoral Division 

West Midland Reserve Forces & 
Cadets Association – needed for the 

AGM in June  

1 – Member 
 

Appointee typically is an Armed Forces 
Champion  

PATROL (Parking And Traffic 

Regulations Outside London) 
Adjudication Joint Committee  

1 – Member 

 
Portfolio Holder with responsibility for 
transport or environment.  

 
1 meeting a year  

 

 
 

Page 40



Council 22 May 2025 Scheme of Delegation 

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 1 

 

  

Annual Council 
 
 

22 May 2025 

 Item 
 

 

 
 

 

Public 

 

   

 
 

SCHEME OF DELEGATION 

Responsible Officer: Tim Collard 

email: tim.collard@shropshire.gov.uk  Tel:  (01743) 252756 

 

1. Synopsis 
 

1.1 Responsibility for Council functions as set out in Part 3 and the Scheme of Delegations 
in Part 8 of the Council’s Constitution (“the Scheme”) is agreed annually.  A 
reconfiguration of the delegations within the Scheme has been undertaken following the 

adoption of the Councils new operating model and this report outlines the updates for 
Members’ approval. 

 
2. Executive Summary 

 
2.1 The Scheme of Delegation sets out the arrangements for the delegation of authority to 

officers to carry out the Council’s various functions and sets out those functions which 

have been delegated to officers. It should be read alongside other Council wide 
procedures and related documentation. 

  
 2.2 Where a function has been delegated to an officer, the person or body making the 

delegation may at any time resume responsibility for the function and may exercise the 

function despite the delegation. 
 

2.3 The Scheme of Delegation presented to Council for approval does not alter the nature or 
level of the delegations given to officers from those set out in previous Schemes but 
merely seeks to address the organisational alterations brought about by the new 

operating model approved by Council in February 2025. In particular, the Scheme has 
been updated to recognise the removal of the former Directorates and the appointment 

of the Service Directors. No additional delegations have been made overall to officers; 
they have merely been re-assigned. 

 

2.4  It is acknowledged that the entire Constitution is in need of a review and re-write and 
plans are in place to undertake that work over the course of the next year or so, in 

Page 41

Agenda Item 12



Council 22 May 2025 Scheme of Delegation 

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 2 

 

conjunction with the Constitutional Working Group (Group Leaders). Approval of the 
updated Scheme of Delegation is a priority before the full Constitutional review to ensure 
lawful delegated decisions can continue to be made. 

 

3. Recommendations 
 

3.1. That Members resolve that the Responsibility for Functions, set out in Part 3 of the 
Constitution and the updated Scheme of Delegations, set out in Part 8 of the 

Constitution be agreed as outlined within this report and as set out in Appendix 1. 

Report 

4. Risk Assessment and Opportunities Appraisal 
 

4.1. It is important that the Council’s Constitution is kept up to date to ensure it reflects the 
way the Council operates and also to ensure that decision making is carried out 

transparently with proper authority. 
 

5. Financial Implications 
 

5.1. This report seeks authority to update Parts 3 and 8 of the Constitution. If the 

Constitution is not kept up to date, any flaws in decision making could lead to the risk of 
costs arising from challenges to decisions or delays in decision making leading to 
unforeseen costs. 

 

6. Climate Change Appraisal 
 

6.1. The adoption of this revised Scheme of Delegation will have no obvious impact in terms 

of climate change. 
 

7. Background 
 

7.1. Responsibility for Council functions is agreed annually at the Council’s Annual General 

Meeting. Those functions are set out in Part 3 of the Council's Constitution which outlines 
the functions of the Council, Committees and the Executive and in Part 8 which outlines 
the functions delegated to officers. An exercise has been undertaken to review Part 8 of 

the Council’s Constitution to ensure that it aligns with the new operating model agreed by 
Council on 27 February 2025. This part of the Constitution sets out the Scheme of 

Delegation to Officers.  
 

7.2. The review has resulted in proposed amendments to Part 8 that can be categorised as 
follows: 

 Those which are merely for clarification purposes 

 Those which are because of changes in job titles and areas of responsibility 

 

7.3. The report does not introduce any new delegations, its purpose is simply to make 

members aware of the amendments which have been required to have been made 

following the adoption of the new Operating Model. 
 
 
 

Page 42



Council 22 May 2025 Scheme of Delegation 

Contact:  Tim Collard 01743 252756 3 

 

 
 

List of Background Papers (This MUST be completed for all reports, but does 
not include items containing exempt or confidential information) 

Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and Regulations made thereunder.  

Local Member:  All 

Appendices  

Appendix 1 – Scheme of Delegation 

 

 

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

SHROPSHIRE SCHEME FOR OFFICER DECISION-MAKING  - PART 8 

PREAMBLE 

A. Introduction 
1. Article 16 and Part 3 of the Constitution set out the general arrangements for decision-

making at the Council. This Part provides more detail on the exercise of decision-making 
powers by officers. 
 

2. In line with the “Councillors at the core” principle of the Council’s Strategic Operating 
Model, and in line with legal requirements, Councillors must be the decision-makers for 
important decisions. They may make decisions at Council, at regulatory committees such 
as Planning or Licensing, or at Cabinet (with Cabinet decisions being referred to as 
“executive decisions”). This class of decision may not be delegated, and the decisions that 
correspond to this class are set out in Part 3.  

 

3. For certain decisions, however, councillors can decide to delegate their decision-making 
powers to officers. This Scheme ensures that this delegation, when it happens, is clear and 
consistent.  

 

4. This Scheme also sets out where powers to make decisions are conferred directly by 
legislation, rather than being delegated by the Council or Cabinet.  

 

5. Effective officer decision-making relies on a number of principles.  

 

B. Principles underpinning officer decision-making 

 

1. The most fundamental principle is that the powers exercised by officers under the Scheme 
do not extend to any of the functions reserved by Part 3 of the Constitution to Council, to 
the Cabinet or to any committee of the Council (unless explicitly delegated to identified 
officers, usually in consultation with the relevant Portfolio Holder, at the time Council, 
Cabinet or the Committee consider the matter).  

2. Officers may not change policies which have been approved by Cabinet or Council, or 
create new policies where the right to do so is reserved to Cabinet or Council, by law or by 
the terms of this Constitution.  

3. Officers may also not provide formal responses to any formal consultation by an external 
body (which may include consultations on White Papers) where those consultations may 
lead to policy changes, or where they may have a significant impact on services.  

 

Other principles include: 

Page 45



2 
 

4. Legality. Decision-making authority is provided to the Council or to the Council’s Cabinet 
by statute (with those powers being informed by the Council’s “general power of 
competence” as provided for by Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011). The way that 
decisions are made must reflect the Council’s overall powers, and must also reflect the 
exact way that those powers have been delegated1. This Scheme of Delegation provides a 
way for officers, members and the public to track the way that powers are delegated to 
ensure that decision-making authority, when exercised, is still exercised within the law. 
Importantly, the scope of the delegation may not be the same as the scope of the overall 
power that the Council enjoys in a given area; 

5. Adherence to wider legal requirements. The Council is obliged to conform to the 
requirements of the Equality Act, the Human Rights Act and other legislation that requires 
that certain relevant considerations be taken into account in the process of decision-
making; 

6. Procedural consistency and propriety. Across the Council there needs to be consistency 
and fairness in the process by which decisions are made. Decisions must be within 
approved revenue and capital budgets and comply with the Council’s Financial and 
Contract Procedure Rules (with some of those Rules making reference to formal, legal 
obligations),  as well as with other procedural requirements; 

7. Reasonableness and proportionality. The legal principles of “reasonableness” and 
“proportionality”, as they apply to administrative action, are complex. In brief, decision-
makers will need to be able to demonstrate that decisions are informed by evidence, that 
they conform to logical norms, that they are not erratic, and that – if an individual’s rights 
are affected by the decision – that due care has been paid to considering how decision-
making can be carried out in a way that minimises negative impacts;    

8. Transparency and accountability. Decisions made under delegated powers need to be 
recorded properly, , and appropriately published.2 Accountability for decisions – when, 
how, and by whom they are made – must be clear; 

9. Consultation and dialogue. The management of the Council is based on an operating 
model that is focused on collective responsibility and action, and on administrative agility. 
Decision-making must be framed in a way that recognises the intersection between 
collective and individual responsibility.  

10. Decisions made under delegated powers must also conform to the Council’s “principles of 
decision-making”, as set out at Article 13.2.  

 

Recording and reporting arrangements: overview 

11. Although there is a requirement for decisions made using powers set out in this Scheme to 
be recorded and reported, a failure to record and report decisions in the way set out does 
not on its own mean that the decision does not have effect. Decisions made under these 
powers should be understood as taking legal effect immediately on being made.  

 
1 For example, delegations must be exercised within agreed budgets.  
2  Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 2014 
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/uksi/2014/2095/regulation/7 

Page 46



3 
 

 
12. Decision-making at the Council will also closely reflect the key principles that underpin the 

Council’s strategic operating model. These principles will underpin the approach that those 
holding power under this scheme of delegation will use to undertake their duties. In 
particular, the principles “Councillors at the core”, “Stakeholder-based decision-making”, 
and “Effective leadership” will be important underpinnings for the exercise of decision-
making powers.  
 
 

13. Specific requirements – in particular those setting out arrangements for sub-delegation and 
for the recording and reporting of decisions – are set out below.  
 

C. Functions of the authority 
 

1. For the purposes of the Scheme of Delegation we can divide the overall functions of the 
authority into three categories: 
 

o Functions of the Executive (EF). These are powers conferred directly on the 
Executive (the Cabinet) by law, and those powers that the Council has decided shall 
be carried by the executive where the law provides for a local choice. These 
decisions are “executive decisions”. They do not include decisions which are made 
by officers in the ordinary, day to day management and operation of their services, 
the transaction of which ultimately falls under the responsibility of the Chief 
Executive (as Head of Paid Service). Some executive decisions are “key decisions” 
as defined in Article 13.3. 3 When an executive decision is designated as a key 
decision there are additional obligations around how it should be made, and 
implemented; 

o Functions of the Council (CF). These are powers which the law says must be 
carried out by full Council. This includes agreeing the budget and policy framework. 
Some Council duties may be delegated by full Council to other Council bodies, or to 
officers. Examples include licensing decision-making and planning , which are 
carried out by officers subject to triggers for referral to committees that hold those 
functions; 

• Functions given to individual officers by other means (PO). These are powers given to 
individual officers to carry out duties in a way that is specified in legislation. Some of these 
powers require that a “proper officer” is identified to carry out these functions. This 
designation may be provided for: 

In legislation directly – eg where the Council’s Monitoring Officer is designated as 
the proper officer to transact certain duties; 

By Council or by the Chief Executive – the Council – either in a formal meeting or 
through a duty that sits with the CEO – may be able to designate the role whose 
occupant holds a specific statutory duty.   

 
3 https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-
services/documents/s36756/Part2ArticlesoftheConstitution.docx.pdf 

Page 47



4 
 

2. Usually a deputy can be designated to carry out the duties of the named “proper officer” in 
that person’s absence.  
 

3. In some cases legislation gives power to “the authority” to do something – in this case the 
power exercised by officers is interpreted as having been delegated by Council subject to 
the terms set out in this Scheme (see above).   
 
 

4. Sometimes, a named officer (in most cases the Chief Executive or Monitoring Officer) may 
have a general power to oversee, ensure or assure the Council’s adherence to a variety of 
statutory obligations.  
 

5. The table below marks each specific power listed with the description or initials 
corresponding to each of these categories so that those exercising powers, and those 
holding them to account, can understand from where those powers derive.  

 

D. Sub-delegation, consultation and the recording and reporting of decisions 
 
Consultation on decision-making 
 
The organisation’s strategic operating model 
 

1. The Council has a Strategic Core, built around the political direction set by members, which 
is focused on collaboration between the organisation’s political leadership (expressed 
through Cabinet) and its officer leadership (expressed through the Leadership Board). 

Some powers are conferred on, or delegated to, Chief Officers. For the purposes of this Part 8 
“Chief Officers” means  the Chief Executive, Executive Directors, Monitoring Officer, s151 Officer, 
Service  Directors and Heads of Service  

2. Officers will exercise their power to make decisions under delegated powers with regard to 
the work of the Leadership Board. Certain officers will need to work together consistently 
and regularly to carry out duties relating to services whose functions are closely linked – for 
example, the duties relating to the Local Authority Social Services Act 1970. In some cases, 
expectations around consultation between officers are set out in the Scheme, although the 
lack of an explicit mention of this duty in respect of certain powers does not mean that a 
requirement to consult is not present.  
 

3. This will particularly need to be the case where the exercise of a delegated power is likely to 
affect more than one service area. In this case direct consultation shall take place with any 
Service Director whose service area is likely to be affected.  

 

Leadership Board not a decision-making body 

4. For the avoidance of doubt the Leadership Board, as an entity, is not a body authorised to 
formally make decisions. Officers with the power to make decisions may co-ordinate the 
exercise of those powers at meetings of the Leadership Board but those officers retain their 

Page 48



5 
 

individual legal responsibility for decision-making, even if they choose to exercise those 
responsibilities in the locus of a meeting of the Leadership Board itself.  
 
Sub-delegation 
 

5. Sub-delegation – sometimes called “onward delegation” – is the principle that certain 
powers, once delegated, can be delegated further to other officers.  
 
The Chief Executive 
 

6. Any power exercisable by the Chief Executive in the Scheme shall be exercisable in the 
absence of the Chief Executive by such other Executive Director as the Chief Executive 
shall designate as their Deputy. 
 

7. The Chief Executive may designate officers as authorised, or proper, officers for exercising 
the Council’s powers under any statutory provisions, subject to the powers conferred by 
legislation to do so. The designation of the Chief Executive, Chief Finance Officer, 
Monitoring Officer and of the statutory functions carried out by Chief Officer shall be made 
by Council as part of the appointments procedure for senior officers as set out in Part 4.  

8. If considering the exercise of a delegated power which would normally be exercised by one 
of the other members of the Leadership Board, the Chief Executive shall consult with the 
Executive Director or Service Director in question, with the Monitoring Officer and with the 
Leader , or Cabinet or relevant Portfolio Holder concerned. In doing so, the Chief Executive 
shall have regard to the possibility that the source and scope of the power in question may 
restrict the right of other officers to exercise it.  
 
The Leadership Board and Chief Officers 
 

9. Chief Officers – are authorised to act on behalf of the Council within the service area for 
which they are responsible. This includes the power to sub-delegate decision-making 
authority, where the source and scope of that power permits that sub-delegation. This is 
additional to the general power set out in this scheme for officers to deputise for Executive 
Directors and Service Directors.  
 

10. Chief Officers and officers referred to by title in this Part 8 may sub-delegate powers to 
exercise functions  delegated to them, to  officers, where such power may be legally 
delegated. The qualification to this is that the delegation reserved to the officer with 
responsibility for trading standards (who, while specified in a the table below is not a 
membership of Leadership Board or a Chief Officer) may only be exercised by an officer 
possessing the necessary qualification to do so. For the avoidance of doubt, this sub-
delegation does not create a line management situation in respect of those officers. 
However certain legal functions have to be exercised by and in the name of the Service 
Director for Legal and Governance.  
 
 

11. Sub-delegation does not abrogate the responsibility of the officer specified in this Scheme 
for the appropriate transaction of the delegated power in question.  
 

Page 49



6 
 

12. In the event of an Officer referred to in Part 7 or within this Part 8 not being available for 
whatever reason, his/her Deputy (or, where there is no officer designated as such, the next 
most appropriate senior officer ) shall be authorised to implement approved delegated 
arrangements. The qualification to this is that in the case of the delegation reserved to the 
officer with responsibility for weights and measures the delegation can only be exercised by 
an officer possessing the necessary qualification to do so. In addition any officer attending 
any meeting, committee, public inquiry or other meetings of this nature as a representative 
of a Chief Officer shall have full authority to act on behalf of that Chief Officer unless such 
authority has been limited by the Chief Officer. 
 

13. For the avoidance of doubt any delegation exercised by a Head of Service may be exercised 
by the relevant member of Leadership Board and any delegation exercised by an Officer 
may be exercised by the Chief Executive unless restricted by this Scheme of Delegation or 
by law. 
 

14. Should the title of an Officer be altered from that shown owing to a re-organisation or for 
any other reason, the approved delegated arrangements shall be exercisable by the 
appropriate Officer referred to in Part 7 or  this Part 8, as the case may be, responsible for 
the function in question 
 

15. All the arrangements for sub-delegation in this section shall be made subject to being 
recorded, and reported to Legal Services.  
 
 
The role of statutory officers 
 

16. Decision-making must be carried out subject to the advice and, where relevant, 
instructions of the principal statutory officers – the Chief Executive, the Chief Finance 
Officer, and the Monitoring Officer (Service Director (Legal and Governance)).  
 

17. The approval of the Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer, or other officers that they 
designate shall be required for the submission of reports that set out decisions to be made 
by members in Cabinet, and at the Council.  
 
 

18. The Chief Finance Officer and Monitoring Officer hold particular duties to assure good 
practice with regard to the authority’s legal, and financial, governance, which are set out in 
more detail in this Scheme. 
 
 
 
Consultation with members 
 

19. Where an issue which falls within an officer’s delegated powers has significant policy, 
service or operational implications, or is politically sensitive, that officer shall consult and 
liaise closely with the appropriate Portfolio Holder (or in their absence, the Leader) or the 
committee chair (or in their absence, the vice-chair) before exercising the delegated 
powers. 

Page 50



7 
 

 
20. It shall always be open to an officer to consult a Cabinet member, a  committee, or its chair 

or vice-chair before exercising the delegated powers, or not to exercise delegated powers 
but to refer the matter to the Council, Cabinet or a committee for decision. 
 

21. The normal requirements for consultation with  and notification of  Local Members on 
matters affecting their Electoral Divisions, as set out in the Local Member Protocol4, will 
also be adhered to. Consultation should be: 

• Timely, to ensure that the relevant Portfolio Holder’s views can be fully taken into 
account in the substance of the decision; 

• Proportionate, to ensure that the principle of delegation is not undermined, that 
decisions are not de facto made by the Portfolio Holder, and that Portfolio Holders 
are involved in supporting delegated decisions where appropriate and not 
indiscriminately; 

• Consistent, to ensure that the decision-making process is predictable across the 
whole Council.  

 

22. In determining on what matters Portfolio Holders should be consulted, officers shall have 
regard to: 

• The likely impact, to the Council and the wider community, of the decision; 
• The risks attached to the decision, which may include the risks attached to options 

considered but not taken forward; 
• The degree of political contention associated with the decision.  

 
23. Officers shall always notify members when operational action of a significant nature is 

planned to be undertaken in their divisions  but this should not amount to consultation on 
the nature of that action other than as part of a wider consultation / engagement exercise. 
 

24. For the avoidance of doubt, notwithstanding the commitment to consult Portfolio Holders 
the responsibility to make executive decisions shall rest with the officer designated in this 
Scheme.  
 

 

 

Recording and reporting of decisions and of arrangements for sub-delegation 

 

25. Executive decisions made under delegated powers shall be recorded, and reported, 
consistently. Decisions made under powers delegated by Council shall be similarly 
recorded and reported.  
 

 
4 https://shropshire.gov.uk/committee-services/documents/s39713/Part5CodesandProtocols.doc.pdf 

Page 51



8 
 

26. Arrangements for sub-delegation made by Chief Officers , shall be recorded  and a record 
kept in Legal Services and  made available for inspection. Arrangements for sub-delegation 
will: 

• Set out the scope of the sub-delegation with reference to the source of the legal power to 
which it relates; 

• Set out the Chief Officer to which the original delegation relates; 

• Set out the furthest that the decision-making power may be onwardly delegated. For 
example in respect of licensing decision-making, certain decisions may be made by the 
Licensing Manager but not by a Licensing Officer; 

• Where appropriate, set out the qualifications or other characteristics that the person to 
whom a power is delegated must possess, whether required by law or reflecting 
arrangements put in place by the Council.  

27. Decisions cannot be made by anyone other than the officer set out in this Scheme unless 
the officer in question has made sub-delegation arrangements that comply with these 
requirements.  
 

28. Where decisions are made by officers who have been designated as the “proper officer”, by 
Council or directly by legislation, the requirements to record and report those decisions 
may be different depending on the nature of the power being exercised. Those exercising 
these powers will need to satisfy themselves, subject to the advice of the Monitoring 
Officer, that they are meeting any such requirements when they make decisions using 
those powers.  

 

Arrangements for oversight 

29. The Council will make, and maintain, systems to ensure that the operation of the Scheme 
of Delegation is kept under active review. There are four continuing levels to this review: 

• By Chief Officers, in respect of decisions made under delegated powers  

• By the Monitoring Officer 

• By the Constitution Working Group 

• By Council formally 

 

SPECIFIC POWERS DELEGATED TO OFFICERS 

Authorisation 

 By this Scheme and subject to the limitations and reservations herein, the Council delegates and 
authorises the officers identified in this Part 8 and any officers acting in their place under 
paragraphs D10, D12 and D14 

(i) to exercise the powers specified;  
(ii) to exercise any of the Council’s functions in an emergency; and  

Page 52



9 
 

(iii) authorises any other officers identified under arrangements made by the Council or 
Cabinet or any committee pursuant to section 101 (2) of the Local Government Act 
1972 or section 15 the Local Government Act 2000 to exercise the powers specified in 
relation to the appropriate officers in those arrangements 
 

E. Executive Directors/Statutory Officers  

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

 CHIEF EXECUTIVE  

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Exercise functions of Head of Paid 
Service (undertaking the general 
management of the Authority)  

 

 

Section 4, Local 
Government and 
Housing Act 1989 
(PO) 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Exercise any function in legislation 
which is described as the duty of the 
“Clerk”, in respect of legislation before 
October 1972  

 

 

(designation as 
“proper officer” in 
various pre-1972 
legislative 
provisions) 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Exercise functions as Head of Paid 
Service: 

 

• to approve the grading and 
regrading of posts subject to 
NJC to Local Government 
Services, Soulbury and Youth 
and Community Worker 
Conditions of Service) where 
the proposed maximum grade 
is Band 14 or above (or 
equivalent). 

• to approve the original grading 
of individual posts, (subject to 
JNC Chief Officer Conditions) 
and regradings of such posts 
providing that the proposed 

 

As above 

Page 53



10 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

grading is no more than one 
grade higher (or lower) than the 
current grade 

• to approve the composition of 
Appeal Panels convened by the 
Service Director (Enabling) to 
deal with disciplinary, grading or 
other issues; 

• to approve significant variations 
to existing corporate personnel 
policies and locally adopted 
conditions of service in relation 
to all national negotiating 
bodies prior to consultation 
taking place with Trades 
Unions, except where the 
financial or policy implications 
across the Council require the 
matter to be referred to the 
Cabinet; 

• To adopt new corporate 
personnel policies and exercise 
any discretions available in 
national agreements, in relation 
to all national negotiating 
bodies, except where the 
financial and policy 
implications across the Council 
require the matter to be referred 
to the Cabinet.  

This Scheme sets out where the Chief 
Executive shall delegate responsibility 
for management of staff and services to 
Service Directors.  

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Maintain a list of politically restricted 
posts and determine applications for 
exemption from the list (in consultation 
with Service Director (Enabling)) 

 

Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 (PO) 

Page 54



11 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Carry out formal duties relating to 
councillors, including: 

 

• Witness and receipt of 
declaration of acceptance of 
office (s83) 

• Receipt of notice of resignation 
by councillor (s84) 

• Declaration of any vacancy of 
office (s86) 

• Convening a meeting of Council 
to fill casual vacancy in office of 
Chairman (s88(2)) 

• Receipt of notice of casual 
vacancy from two local 
government electors (s89(1)(b)) 

• Agree changes to appointments 
to outside bodies arising from 
changes in Cabinet, members 
or group nominations 

• Approve nominations received 
for the filling of coopted 
member vacancies on 
committees and panels in 
consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder and/or chair 
where relevant. 

 

Local Government 
Act 1972 (PO) 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Act as Parish Trustee; hold 
responsibility for convening newly 
created parish councils; receipt of 
notice of casual vacancy in respect of 
parish councils from two local 
government electors 

 

Section 13(3) Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO), Local  

Page 55



12 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Exercise emergency powers, including 
authorising the incurring of expenditure 
where there is no specific provision in 
the budget set by the Council for this to 
be done (subject to the views of the 
Chief Finance Officer and rules relating 
to emergency decision-making).  

 

Section 138, Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO) 

 

 
Chief Executive 

 
Appoint such independent persons to 
Appeals Committees or Panels as  
required by law or in his/her discretion 
appears appropriate and may  
maintain lists of such persons for such 
purposes. 

 
Various sources 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Appoint the Chairs of Education 
Admission and Exclusion Appeal 
Panels 

 

Section 94, School 
Standards and 
Framework Act 1998 
(FC) 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Issue licences or control any 
registration of persons or premises on 
behalf of the Council under any 
legislation, save to the extent that this 
power is specifically delegated by this 
Scheme or reserved by law to a specific 
officer.  

 

Various sources 

 
Chief Executive 

 
In consultation with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder to take decisions in 
respect of any company where the 
Council has an interest as shareholder, 
subject to issues of a significant nature 
being brought to Cabinet and, if 
necessary, to Council. (A significant 
issue is a decision which is likely to 
result in the Council incurring 
expenditure, making a saving, receiving 
income or an increase in share value 

 

Page 56



13 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

above a budget value of £500,000 as 
per the Council’s Financial Rules). 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Publish notices as required on behalf of 
the Council under any legislation save 
to the extent that this power is 
specifically delegated by this Scheme 
or reserved by law to a specific officer. 

 

Various sources 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 
To approve any requests from Town 
Councils for Shropshire Council to 
delegate its powers to install / create 
Freemen and Honorary Freemen. 

 
Sections 248 & 249 
of the Local 
Government Act  
1972 
 

 

Chief Executive 

 

 

Act as the Council’s Electoral 
Registration Officer and Returning 
Officer for local elections and as Acting 
Returning Officer for Parliamentary 
elections, referendums and for other 
elections 

 

Carry out functions relating to petitions 

 

Receive and inspect returns and 
declaration of election expenses, and 
notice of appointment of election 
agents.  

 

Including provision of accommodation 
for election courts and retention for 
inspection of election documents.  

 

Representation of 
the People Acts (PO) 

 

Local Authorities 
(Referendums) 
(England) 
Regulations 2011 

 

Local Authorities 
(Conduct of 
Referendums) 
(England) 
Regulations 2012 

 

Chief Executive 

 

On the recommendation of relevant 
member of Leadership Board to  amend 
fees and charges within a year from that 

 

Full Council 
delegation 

 

Page 57



14 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

agreed by Full Council’s Charging Policy 
but only where: 

• Such arrangements follow the 
principles set out in the 
approved Charging Policy; 

• Any proposed changes are 
approved in line with the 
Council’s Virement Rules 
(where financial thresholds are 
met).  

• It is subject to consultation with 
the Portfolio Holder for the 
relevant service area. 

 

 SECTION 151 OFFICER / CHIEF 
FINANCE OFFICER 

 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

 

Carry out the responsibilities and 
powers of the Chief Finance Officer, 
including: 

 

• Making recommendations to 
the Council on: 

o Council Tax 
requirements; 

o The Council Tax base; 

• Managing generally all matters 
relating to Council Tax and Non-
Domestic Rates including 
(where required and/or 
permitted by law) the awarding 
of discounts, relief and 
exemptions and the levying, 
collection recovery and 
disbursement of all sums due 
to the Council in respect of the 
same. 

 

Section 151, Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO), Local 
Government 
Finance Act 1988, 
Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989, Local 
Government Act 
2003  

Accounts and Audit 
Regulations 2015  

 

Page 58



15 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

• Maintaining the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules, 
subject to consultation with the 
Monitoring Officer, , as part of 
the Council’s Constitution. 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Ensure, and provide assurance, that 
public money is safeguarded, and used 
economically, efficiently and 
effectively, in line with the authority’s 
Best Value duties. This includes: 

 

• The determination of financial 
management and accounting 
procedures and the form and 
extent of financial records; 

• The production and distribution 
of financial management 
information; 

• The maintenance of the 
Council’s Financial Procedure 
Rules and Contract Procedure 
Rules, in conjunction with the 
Monitoring Officer.  

 

Local Government 
Act 1999 (CF) 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Undertake duties relating to operational 
financial management including but 
not limited to: 

• Action on behalf of the Council 
in respect of financial 
arrangements and obligations 
with external bodies (including 
management of grant funding 
where the Council is the 
Accountable Body); 

• Virement (ie the transfer of 
sums approved for a specified 

 

Page 59



16 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

purpose), in accordance with 
the Finance Procedure Rules; 

• Virement in cases of urgency, 
where not otherwise covered by 
delegated authority, subject to 
member consultation; 

• Approval of individual items of 
expenditure from the Council’s 
reserves; 

• Maintenance of a “carry-
forward” scheme for 
underspends; 

• Approve supplementary capital 
votes subject to the limitations 
set out in the Financial Rules 

• Management of arrangements 
for supplementary revenue for 
items which are unavoidable (ie 
arise from externally-imposed 
legal/contractual requirements, 
and the obligation to deliver a 
balanced budget) and not 
inconsistent with approved 
budgetary policy.  

The above, and connected, tasks to 
give effect to Council’s votes on budget 
and finance matters, and Cabinet 
agreement, as appropriate. 

 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

 

Undertake duties relating to effective 
treasury management and asset 
management, including but not limited 
to: 

• The operation of banking 
arrangements; 

 

Local Government 
Finance Act 1988, 
Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 

 

Page 60



17 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

• The payment of salaries, 
allowances and invoices, and 
payments of pensions, 
gratuities, grants etc; 

• Support to the Council’s 
function to administer and 
operate the Pension Fund, 
including acting as Scheme 
Administrator for the Shropshire 
County Pension Fund; and to 
exercise the Council’s voting 
rights as a member of the 
National Association of Pension 
Fund Investment Protection 
Committee subject to 
consultation with the chair pf 
Pension Committee if 
appropriate 

• To collect coordinate control 
and administer  income and 
monies  due to the Council, and 
to exercise discretion conferred 
on the Council  and administer 
and determine claims in 
respect of Council Tax, national 
non-domestic rates (business 
rates), and Housing Benefit; 

• Write off court costs in respect 
of national  non domestic rates 
and council tax  

• Write off irrecoverable income if 
the amount owed is £100,000 or 
less; 

• The safeguarding of assets; 

• Maintenance of insurance 
arrangements.  

Superannuation 
Acts (and 
Regulations) 

   

Page 61



18 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

Make accounts available for inspection 
by councillors 

Section 228(3), 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (PO) 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

Make Chief Finance Officer reports 

 

Proceeds of Crime 
2002 (PO) 

 

Section 151 Officer / 
Chief Finance Officer 

 

 
Act as the Council’s Senior Information 
Risk Owner (SIRO)  

 
General Data 
Protection 
Regulation 

 MONITORING OFFICER  

(SERVICE DIRECTOR, LEGAL AND 
GOVERNANCE) 

 

 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Exercise the powers and 
responsibilities as Monitoring Officer, 
and submitting reports to Council in 
that capacity 

 

Section 5, Local 
Government and 
Housing Act 1989 
(PO) 

 
Monitoring Officer 

 
Make or authorise payment or provision 
of other benefits in the cases of 
maladministration as set out in 
Schedule 1 of the Functions 
Regulations 
 

 
Local Government 
Act 2000 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

Undertake duties relating to the 
representation of the Council on legal 
matters, including: 

 

• To take steps or undertake legal 
proceedings to secure 
compliance with any notice 
served or injunction granted to 
the Council by the courts; 

• To institute, defend, act (or 
authorise others to act) in 

 

Section 222, 223, 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (PO) 

 

Section 60, County 
Courts Act 1984 (PO) 

 

Local Authorities 
(Contracts) Act 1997 

Page 62



19 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

relation to any legal 
proceedings instituted by, or 
against, the Council and where 
the interests of the Council 
require that it should be legally 
represented; 

• To settle such proceedings 
where doing so meets the best 
interests of the Council, in 
consultation with the s151 
officer where there are financial 
implications ; 

• To take steps to enable or effect 
compliance with any Council, 
Cabinet or Committee 
resolution, including signing 
any relevant documentation; 

• To represent the Council on 
proceedings before the Courts 
in relation to authorisations for 
the use of investigatory powers, 
and to act as SRO in respect of 
RIPA codes of practice; 

• To sign contract certificates; 

• To authorise and instruct 
Counsel and external solicitors; 

(FC, EF depending 
on the contract) 

 

Regulation of 
Investigatory 
Powers Act 2000 

 
Monitoring Officer 

 
To affix the Council’s Common Seal to 
any document in order to give effect  
to any decision of the Council, Cabinet, 
Committee, Sub-Committee or of an  
officer acting under delegated powers 
and thereafter to attest the seal. 
 
To sign any documentation in order to 
give effect to any decision of the  
Council Cabinet, Committee, Sub-
Committee or of an officer acting under  
delegated powers. 
 

 
Various 

Page 63



20 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Deposit of documents further to 
standing orders of either House of 
Parliament  

 

Section 225(1), 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (PO) 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Certify photographic copies of 
documents, authentication of 
documents 

 

 

Section 229(5), 
section 234(1), Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO) 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Sign the summons to council meetings, 
and take notice of councillors’ 
preferred address for summonses 
where not their place of residence 

 

Section 99, 
Schedule 12, Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO) 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

 

Manage the system for receiving and 
registering councillors’ declarations of 
interest, including handling sensitive 
interests and dispensations from 
restrictions  

 

Sections 29-33, 
Localism Act 2011 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

 

 

Carry out functions relating to Political 
Groups, including: 

 

• Receipt of notice of changes to 
Groups, including notice of 
cessation of membership of 
Groups; 

• Take representations from 
Groups in respect of 
proportionality, and notify 
Groups of allocations; 

• Take receipt of notice (in 
writing) that a Councillor 

 

Sections 15 et seq, 
Local Government 
and Housing Act 
1989 

 

Regulation 9 et seq, 
Local Government 
(Political Groups) 
Regulations 1990 

Page 64



21 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

wishes to forego part of any 
entitlement or allowance.  

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Certify byelaws, and send confirmed 
byelaws to the proper officer of parish / 
community councils to which they 
apply 

 

Section 236, 238, 
Local Government 
Act 1972 (PO) 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Manage the formal records of the 
Council including: 

 

• Exclusion of formal reports from 
inspection 

• Supply of documents to the 
press 

• Providing a written summary 
where minutes would disclose 
exempt information 

• Compilation of lists of 
background papers 

• Exclusion from production to 
Councillors of documents 
disclosing exempt information 
(unless they are entitled to 
information by virtue of the 
“need to know” or Regulations) 

 

Schedule 12A, 
s100B et seq, Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO) 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Certification of copies of resolutions, 
minutes and other documents 

 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Authenticate and serve statutory 
notices 

 

Various sources 

   

Page 65



22 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

Serve notices requiring particulars of 
ownership 

 

Section 16, Local 
Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Undertake duties in relation to the 
Council’s compliance with legislation 
on information management, including 
transacting “s36” reviews on the use of 
the exemption to the requirement to 
provide information on the ground that 
it would be prejudicial to the effective 
conduct of public affairs 

 

Freedom of 
Information Act 
2000, General Data 
Protection 
Regulations 

 

Monitoring Officer 

 

 

Maintain the Council’s Constitution to 
include making routine revisions 
providing clarity where necessary and 
by replacing references to any 
repealed, amended, consolidated or 
replacement primary or secondary 
legislation, and replacing references to 
job titles referred to where they are 
changed or restructured 

 

Power conferred by 
the Constitution 
(FC) 

Monitoring Officer In conjunction with the s151 Officer to 
maintain the Council’s Contract 
Procedure Rules 
 
 
 
 

 

 DIRECTOR OF ADULT SOCIAL 
SERVICES 

 

 

 Director of  

Adult Social Services 

 

Carry out the functions of Director of 
Adult Services, including making 
arrangements for the appointment of a 
deputy statutory officer in the absence 
of, incapacity of, or vacancy in, the post 

 

Section 6, Local 
Authority Services 
Act 1970 (PO) 

Page 66



23 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

  

Director of Adult Social 
Services 

 

 

Terminate contracts funded from 
agreed budgets for the provision by 
third parties of services for adults (in 
consultation with the Monitoring 
Officer) 

 

 
Director of Adult Social 
Services 

 

 
Power to authorise officer  to undertake 
duties as the nominated individual by 
the Council to undertake regulated 
activities 

Regulation 6, Health 
and Social Care Act 
2008 (Regulated 
Activities) 
Regulations 2014 
(PO) 

  

DIRECTOR OF CHILDREN’S SERVICES 

 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

Carry out the statutory duties relating 
to the Director of Children’s Services 

 

Section 18, Children 
Act 2004 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

Carry out the Council’s education 
functions as a local authority (except 
those excluded by law) 

 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Carry out the Council’s functions 
relating to children’s social services 
within the meaning of the Local 
Authorities  

 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Approve the convening of a secure 
accommodation panel 

 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Approve the placement of a child or 
young person out of  county 

 

Care Planning, 
Placement and 
Case Review 

Page 67



24 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

(England) 
Regulations 2010 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Actions in relation to children looked 
after, including: 

 

• Approval of a request for a LAC 
to join the Armed Forces 

• Deciding to cease looking after 
a 16 or 17 year old person 
looked after by virtue of a Care 
Order 

• Notification to Ofsted and the 
Secretary of State following the 
death of a child looked after  / 
serious harm to a child looked 
after in a children’s home or 
foster care 

• Notification to Ofsted of a 
serious case review 

• Placement of a child with an 
(interim) care order with 
parents or persons with 
parental responsibility 

• Agreement of any stay with 
parent(s) for more than 24 
hours 

• Approval of short or long term 
external residential placements 

• Approval of unregulated 
provision 

• Agreement to authorise 
absence from education 

 

Page 68



25 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

• Agreement that a child can 
remain in residential placement 
on attainment of the age of 18 

• Carry out assessments and 
pathway plans in respect of 
care leavers 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

 

Provide financial assessment to 
children in need in the area 

 

Section 17, Children 
Act 1989 

 

Director of Children’s 
Services 

 

Authorise statutory penalty notices for 
court proceedings in respect of non-
attendance at school 

 

 

Section 444, 
Education Act 1996 

  

DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH 

 

 

Director of Public Health  

 

 

Hold the statutory role for the Council 
as person appointed as the Director of 
Public Health 

 

Section 73A, 
National Health 
Service Act 2006 

 

Director of Public Health  

 

 

In relation to the above, develop and 
direct the Council’s work with regard to: 

 

• Public health intelligence 

• Health improvement 

• Health protection including 
emergency planning for public 
health 

• Wider determinants of health  

 

 

Page 69



26 
 

 

Power held by… 

 

 

Brief description of power  

 

Source of the power 

 

• Public health commissioning 

• Provision of advice to the NHS 

 

Director of Public Health  

 

 

Certify resolutions applying or 
disapplying provisions under the Public 
Health Acts 

 

Schedule 14 Para 
25, Local 
Government Act 
1972 (PO) 

  

Carry out duties relating to notifiable 
diseases: 

 

• Supply of forms to doctors, and 
prepare certificates for Justices 
of the Peace, for purposes of 
removal of bodies to mortuaries 
and burial, and connected 
purposes 

• Receipt and disclosure of 
notification of suspected 
notifiable disease, infection or 
contamination 

• Power to enter premises 

• Signature / authentication of 
notices, orders etc 

 

Public Health 
(Control of 
Diseases) Act 1984 
(PO) 

 

Heath Protection 
(Notification) 
Regulations 2010 
(PO) 

Director of Public Health Act as the Caldicott Guardian Statutory guidance 
issued under the 
Health and Social 
Care (National Data 
Guardians) Act 2018 

 

F. Leadership Board/Chief Officers 

 

Page 70



27 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 ALL MEMBERS OF LEADERSHIP BOARD AND CHIEF 
OFFICERS 

(NB: AS INDIVIDUALS IN RESPECT OF THEIR OWN 
SERVICE, AND NOT COLLECTIVELY) 

 

 
All LB 
Members 

 
Officers referred to in Part 7 (Management Structure) or 
by title within this Part 8 or any successor subsequent to 
any re-organisation and any officers  acting in their 
place under paragraphs D10 and D12 are authorised to 
exercise the  powers of the Council (both Executive and 
non-Executive functions) relating  to their areas of 
responsibility as set out in Part 7 of this Constitution 
including  professional and managerial functions 
relating to his/her service subject to the  limitations and 
reservations of this Scheme 
 

 

 

Chief Officers5 

 

In respect of employment matters, and subject to the 
power held by the Chief Executive as Head of Paid 
Service: 

 

• Implement, in the areas for which they are 
responsible, corporate personnel policies and 
nationally and locally determined conditions of 
service adopted by the Council; 

• Within the services for which they are 
responsible appoint staff (and approve changes 
to the number and distribution of posts, and to 
grading taking account of job evaluation 
outcomes  subject to the proposed maximum 
grade being Band 14 or equivalent) within 
structures and budgets approved by the 
Council and the Cabinet where Procedure 
Rules allow and exercise control and discipline 
and dismissal in accordance with the Council’s 
agreed policies and personnel procedures;  

 

 
5 As defined in paragraph D1 above 

Page 71



28 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

• Make agreements with other organisations for 
placing of staff at the disposal of other 
organisations, (eg through secondment or joint 
working arrangements) on advice from the 
Service Director (Enabling).  

 

All LB 
members 

 

With prejudice to the powers of the Service Director 
Legal and Governance, the  power to institute 
proceedings either in the name of the Council or in the 
name of an officer under those statutory provisions 
which relate to their respective service areas, in 
consultation with the Monitoring Officer.  

 

 

LB members 

 

Recommend to the Chief Executive the amendment of  
fees and charges within a year  from that agreed by Full 
Council’s Charging Policy but only where: 

• Such arrangements follow the principles set out 
in the approved Charging Policy; 

• Any proposed changes are approved in line with 
the Council’s Virement Rules (where financial 
thresholds are met).  

• It is subject to consultation with the Portfolio 
Holder for the relevant service area. 

 

Full Council delegation 

 

 

 

Chief Officers 

 

Act on behalf of the Council in respect of the service 
area for which  he /she is responsible  and exercise day 
to day management of services, staff and resources 
under the control of the relevant Chief Officer subject to 
the considerations set out in the Introduction above and 
this scheme of delegation  This includes: 

 

• the acquisition of assets and services necessary 
for this day to day management performance of 
the Council’s business or fulfilment of any 

 

Full Council (subject to 
the approved budget 
and policy framework) 

 

Executive (subject to 
the need to resource 
and implemented 
Cabinet decisions) 

 

Page 72



29 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

matter authorised by Cabinet for which a budget 
has been approved. 

• Maintaining the operation and effectiveness of 
services; 

• Implementing decisions (including policy 
decisions)  taken by the Council and Cabinet 

Delegation from the 
Head of Paid Service 

 

 

Chief Officers 

 

Enter into agreements for the provision of services to 
third parties and make charges 

 

 

Full Council, Cabinet 
(depending on the 
services in question) 

 

Subject to consultation 
with the relevant 
Portfolio Holder and 
advice from the 
Monitoring Officer 

 

Chief Officers 

 

Authorise staff to exercise such powers of entry, 
inspection and survey of land buildings or premises and 
issue any necessary evidence or authority as may be 
appropriate to the execution of their duties and in 
respect of which they have statutory powers 

 

 

Chief Officers 

 

Designate another officer to carry out powers delegated 
through this Scheme, subject to the law and to separate 
arrangements for sub-delegation.  

 

  

SERVICE DIRECTOR, STRATEGY 

 

 

 

Strategy 

 

 

Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making.  

 

Page 73



30 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

  

SERVICE DIRECTOR, LEGAL AND GOVERNANCE 

 

 

 

Legal and 
Governance 

 

 

Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making.  

 

(Other duties relating to this Service Director are set out 
in the table of Chief Officer powers above).  

 

 Commons/Town and Village Greens  
 

Legal and 
Governance 

 

Undertake duties relating to the registration of land as a 
town or village green as set out: 

a) To sanction the withdrawal of an application to 
register land as a town or  village green where 
there are no objections to such a withdrawal. 

b) To determine whether an application to register 
land as a town or village  green is duly made in 
accordance with the relevant regulations. 

c) To advertise applications to register land as 
town or village greens that are deemed duly 
made in accordance with the relevant 
regulations. 

 

 

Section 15, Commons 
Act 2006 

 
Legal and 
Governance  

 
To determine applications for the apportionments of 
rights of common in the  Register of Common Land. 
 

 
Commons Act 2006 

 Registrars  
 

Superint. 
Registrar 

 

Exercise of registration functions relating to births, 
marriages and deaths, and carrying on other 
ceremonies 

 

Births and Deaths 
Registration Act 1953 

Marriage Act 1949 

Civil Partnership Act 
2004 

Page 74



31 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Registration Act 1836 

Registration of Births 
and Deaths Regulations 
1987 

 LandCharges  
 

Legal and 
Governance 

 

 

Act as local registrar for land charge matters 

 

 

Land Registration Act 
2002 (PO) 

 

Local Land Charges Act 
1975 (PO) 

 Planning  
 
Legal and 
Governance 

 
Determination of all planning matters as set out in the 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000 with the exception of the 
following which shall be determined by the relevant 
committee: 

• Applications made, by or on behalf of, or relating 
to the property of Members  or officers of the 
Council who hold politically restricted posts or 
who either  directly or indirectly report to the 
Planning Services Manager or the Policy and 
Environment Service Manager,   
 

• Applications made by the Council, or in relation 
to land owned by the Council, which are not in-
line with statutory functions (this would mean 
that class room  extensions etc were delegated 
to officers but speculative proposals on council  
owned land would not be) 

• Applications accompanied by a Schedule 1 
Environmental Statement 

• Complex or major applications which in the view 
of the Service  Director for Legal and 
Governance  or the Planning Services Manager 
in consultation with the  committee chairman or 
vice chairman should be determined by the 
relevant  Planning Committee 

Member call-in 

 
Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990  
 
Planning (Hazardous 
Substances) Act 1990 
 
Planning (Listed 
Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) 
Act 
Environment Act 2021 
 
Town and Country 
Planning Act 1971 
 
Anti-social Behaviour 
Act 2003 

Page 75



32 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

• Applications requested to be referred, by the 
Local Member, to the relevant Planning 
Committee within 21 days of electronic 
notification of the application and agreed by the 
Planning Services Manager or  Team Manager 
(Planning) in consultation with the committee 
chairman or vice chairman to be based on 
material planning reasons. A Practice Note is 
available in relation to “material planning 
considerations” 

Parish and Town Councils 
• Applications where the Parish Council submit a 

view contrary to officers  (approval or refusal) 
based on material planning reasons the 
following tests  need to be met: 

i. these contrary views cannot reasonably be 
overcome by negotiation or  the imposition of 
planning conditions; and 

ii. the Team Manager (Planning) or Principal 
Planning Officer in consultation  with the 
committee chairman or vice chairman and the 
Local Member agrees that the Parish/Town 
Council has raised material planning issues  and 
that the application should be determined by 
committee. 
 

For the avoidance of doubt the following remain 
delegated to the Service Director Legal and 
Governance:  
 
Consultee Objections  
• Ability to proceed to determine under delegated 
powers applications where a statutory consultee may 
object to a proposal providing that the development 
remains in accordance with the provisions of the 
Development Plan.  
 
Enforcement  
• Ability to authorise entry to land and property  
• Ability to issue Planning Contravention Notices, 
Breach Of Condition Notices, Enforcement Notices, 
Temporary Stop Notices, Stop Notices, Section 215 
Notices, Listed Building Enforcement Notices, 
Conservation Area Notices, Discontinuance Notices in 
respect of advertisements, Building Preservation 

Page 76



33 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Notices, Notices under Section 330 requiring 
information as to interests in land and other remedial 
action as set out in the Planning Compliance policy.  
Trees / Hedgerows  
• To make and confirm Tree Preservation Orders, Tree 
Replacement Notices, Hedgerow Replacement Notices, 
Hedgerow Retention Notices and to determine 
applications to carry out works to protected trees 
including trees in Conservation Areas and hedgerows 
and to provide replacement trees and hedgerows.  
• To deal with all matters relating to complaints 
regarding high hedges 
Appeals 
To respond to all appeals on planning matters  
• To refuse to determine applications where an appeal 
for the same development has been refused within the 2 
years  
Planning Obligations 
To require planning obligations without referral to 
committee  
• To discharge planning obligations under Section 52 
Town and Country Planning Act 1971 or Section 106 
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and to vary or 
modify Section 52 Agreements as required.  
• To approve release of contribution money to third 
parties 
 

 Building Control   
  

Responsible for exercising the Council’s Building 
Control service to include: 
 

• Approval, conditional approval and rejection of 
applications, notices, commencement of legal 
proceedings, signing and service of notices and 
issuing formal cautions, 

• Staffing and supplies of goods and services 
• Authorisation of staff: to serve notices requiring 

particulars of ownership; to exercise powers of 
entry to land/property for  the purposes of 
inspection, enforcement, surveying, testing and 
sampling as provided in  the relevant legislation, 
to swear affidavits in any court proceedings; to 
determine and negotiate fees and charges for 
building regulation applications and notices;  

 
Building Act 1984 (PO)  
Building Regulations 
Local Government 
Goods and Services Act 
1970 
Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Acts 1976 
and 1982 
 
Party Wall Act 1996 

Page 77



34 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

• Hire of plant and specialist sub-contractors  
• Sale of surplus materials, equipment and goods 
• Assess, determine and publish building control 

fees and charges in conjunction with Section 
151 Officer  and consultation with Portfolio 
Holder  

• Provision of fee earning services beyond the 
scope of Bulidng Regulations, with in Local 
Government Goods and Services Act 

• Entry into partnerships and determine building 
regulation applications under the LABC 
Partnership Scheme 

• Carry out Council building control functions  
• Act as Appointing Officer for determination of 

Party Wall Act matters 
• Emergency action in respect of dangerous 

structures  
 

 Community Infrastructure Levy   
 
Strategy 

 
Act on behalf of the Council in its role as the 
Community Infrastructure  Levy charging authority in 
the day to day implementation of the Community 
Infrastructure Levy in accordance with the Community 
Infrastructure Regulations 

 
Community  
Infrastructure Levy 
Community 
Infrastructure 
Regulations  2010  
 

  

SERVICE DIRECTOR, COMMISSIONING 

 

 

Commissionin
g 

 

Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making.  

 

 

Commissionin
g 

 

 
 
Maintenance of cemetery records, including 
responsibility for the signing of grants relating to 
cemeteries 
 
 

 
Local Authorities 
Cemetery Order (PO) 

   

Page 78



35 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

SERVICE DIRECTOR, CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

 

Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making.  

 

 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

 

Act as or designate responsible individual for carrying 
on a children’s home 

 

 

Regulation 26, 
Children’s Homes 
(England) Regulations 
2015 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

 

Designate manager for children’s home(s) 

 

 
 
 

 

Regulation 27, 
Children’s Homes 
(England) Regulations 
2015 

 

 

Children and 
Young People 

 

 

Appointment of Independent Reviewing Officers to 
children’s services files 

 

 

Children Act 1989 

  

SERVICE DIRECTOR, CARE AND WELLBEING 

 

 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making   

 

 

Page 79



36 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

Exercise adult social services functions  

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Take any lawful action on the services to be provided to 
an individual, or action to be taken in respect of an 
individual (including decisions on charging and the 
agreement of individual care packages) 

 

 

Mental Health Act 1983, 
Mental Capacity Act 
2005, Care Act 2014 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Make applications to the Court of Protection, and to 
undertake the role of Deputy for property and financial 
affairs on appointment by the Court, and to sign 
documents and approve paperwork as appropriate.  

 

 

Mental Capacity Act 
2005 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Exercise the role of appointeeship with the Department 
for Work and Pensions, and to sign documents and 
approve paperwork as appropriate.  

 

 

Social Security (Claims 
and Payments) 
Regulations 1987 (PO) 

 

Universal Credit, 
Personal Independence 
Payment, JSA and ESA 
(Claims and Payments) 
Regulations 2013 (PO) 

 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Exercise the Council’s role as a supervisory body in 
respect of deprivation of liberty, including the 
authorisation of a Deprivation of Liberty arrangement. 

 

 

Mental Capacity Act 
2005 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

Approval of paperwork for Court of Protection orders 

 

Mental Capacity Act 
2005 

Page 80



37 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

  

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Approval and signing of paperwork relating to: 

 

• Applications for access to bank accounts, 
private pensions and stocks and shares; 

• Sale of property and house clearances; 

• Confirmation of changes in details; 

• Reports to the Office of the Public Guardian 

 

 

 

Mental Capacity Act 
2005 

 

Lasting Powers of 
Attorney, Enduring 
Powers of Attorney and 
Public Guardian 
Regulations 2007 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Accept a guardianship application and make an 
associated order for discharge subject to guardianship 

 

 

Mental Health Act 1983 

 

Care and 
Wellbeing 

 

 

Deal with complaints arising from the Council’s adult 
social care functions 

 

 

The Local Authority 
Social Services and 
National Health Service 
Complaints (England) 
Regulations 2009 

 

 

 

 

SERVICE DIRECTOR, INFRASTRUCTURE 

 

 
Infrastructure 

 
Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making   

 

 Traffic and Highways  
 

Infrastructure 

 Traffic Management Act 
2004 (PO) 

Page 81



38 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 Make arrangements for highways management and 
appointment of Traffic Manager 

 

 

 
Infrastructure 

 
Management and enforcement in relation to traffic and 
highways to include signing and serving notices in 
respect of contraventions  

 
Highways Act 1980, (PO) 
Traffic Management Act 
2004 (PO) 
New Roads  
and Street Works Act 
1991 (PO)  
 

 
Infrastructure 

 
To serve notices requiring particulars of ownership  

 
s16 Local Government (  
Miscellaneous ) 
Provisions Act 1976 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Advertise road traffic orders  

Make traffic orders or parts of orders where no 
objections received to the order or part 

Make traffic orders where objections received but on 
due consideration they are considered to be frivolous or 
irrelevant, not of a complex nature and/or of only local 
significance, the making of other orders being a matter 
for Cabinet  

Make minor modifications to traffic orders before it is 
made including to address any objections received  

 

 

 

 

Road Traffic Regulation 
Act 1984 

 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Receive certificates approving dedication of highways to 
be maintained at public expense; power to adopt 
highway by agreement 

 

Making certificates available for inspection 

 

Section 37(5), 38, 
Highways Act (PO) 

Page 82



39 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Carry out duties in relation to streetworks in private 
streets, including certification of documents giving 
details of any amendments to costs, provisional and 
final apportionment of costs 

 

 

Section 205, 210 et seq, 
Highways Act 1980 (PO) 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Agree the execution of streetworks 

 

 

Section 278, Highways 
Act 1980 (PO) 

 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Issue notice requiring owners to remove materials from 
streets in which works are due to take place 

 

 

Section 295, Highways 
Act 1980 (PO) 

 

 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Sign and authenticate notices, consents and other 
documents 

 

 

Section 321, Highways 
Act 1980 (PO) 

 

 Land Drainage  
Infrastructure 

 

Carry out duties in respect of Land Drainage to include 
signing and serving notices in respect of contraventions  

Land Drainage Act 1991 

 Highways and Environmental Maintenance  
Infrastructure Carry out duties in respect of highways, environmental 

maintenance (to include the enforcement of local 
bylaws)  
and parking enforcement generally for the areas for 
which they are  responsible to include: 
 
• Discharging the  powers, duties and 
responsibilities of the Council; 
• Appointing, designating and authorising officers; 
• Authorising the institution and defence of 
proceedings 

 

Page 83



40 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Infrastructure Civil enforcement of Traffic Contraventions and Blue 
Badge scheme 

Traffic Management Act 
2004 
Chronically Sick and 
Disabled Persons Act 
1970 

Infrastructure Littering to include  fixed penalty notices and dealing 
with the unauthorised distribution of free printed matter 

Sections 87,88, 
Schedule 3A 
Environmental 
Protection Act 19900 

Infrastructure Abandoned Vehicles/Fly-Tipping: 
Abandoned motor vehicles, and related items, 
unauthorised/harmful depositing  of waste, 
transportation of controlled waste without registering,  
to include removal of such waste, and issue of fixed 
penalty notices for contraventions 

Refuse Disposal 
(Amenity) Act 1978 
Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
Control of Pollution 
(Amendment) Act 1989 

Infrastructure Fly-Posting/Graffiti:  
displaying advertisements in contravention of 
regulations  obliterating traffic signs including signposts 
erected or placed along a footpath, bridleway, restricted 
byway or byway  
painting or otherwise inscribing or affixing marks on the 
surface of or on any structures in or on the highway  
Section destroying or damaging property as it relates to 
the painting or writing on, or the soiling, marking or 
other defacing of, any property by whatever means 
to include issuing  penalty notices for relevant offences 
relating to graffiti and fly-posting 

Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 – 
s224 
Highways Act 1980 
s131, s132 
Criminal Damage Act 
1971 
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Act 2003 – s44 

Infrastructure Nuisance parking; 
Exposing vehicles for sale on a road 
Repairing vehicles on a road, 
Nuisance parking 
To include issuing fixed penalty notice 
 

Clean Neighbourhoods 
and Environment Act 
2005 

Infrastructure Pavement permits: 
administration and  enforcement of permission to use 
the highway - insofar as it relates  to the use of the 
highway where no pavement permit has been sought or  
granted 
 

Highways Act 1980  

Infrastructure Waste: 
making and retention of controlled waste related  
documents and the furnishing of documents 
fixed penalty notices for offences relating to EPA 1990 
Sections 34 (5) and (6), 46, 47, 47ZA 

Environmental  
Protection Act 1990  

Page 84



41 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

provision of adequate  receptacles for waste 
(household, commercial, industrial)  

 
Infrastructure 

 
Anti-social behaviour and community protection 
including administration and enforcement of 
Community Protection Notices, and Public Space 
Protection Orders 
 

 
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Act 2003 (PO) 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 
2014 (PO) 

 Countryside and Rights of Way  
 

Infrastructure 

 

 

Perform duties relating to access to the countryside 

 

 

Countryside and Rights 
of Way Act 2000  

 

 
Infrastructure 

 
Determine all rights of way  matters as set out in the 
Local Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) 
(England) Regulations 2000 save for  those matters 
which in the discretion of the Service Director 
Infrastructure should be referred to the relevant 
Planning Committee. 
 
The Local Member has the right, after consultation with 
the Service Director Infrastructure  to request that 
objected to Public Path Applications  (under the 
Highways Act 1980) that are based on grounds of 
preference) are  referred to the relevant Planning 
Committee. The request by the Local Member is to  be 
made in writing within 10  days of the Local Member 
being notified of matters to which there have been  
objections. 
NB. For the avoidance of doubt this procedure does not 
apply to order applications  based on evidence under 
the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. 
 

 
Highways Act 1980 
 
Wildlife and 
Countryside Act 1981 
 
Countryside and Rights 
of Way Act 1980  

 
Infrastructure 
 

 
Authorise holding of trials between motor vehicles on 
public paths  

 
S 33 Road Traffic Act 
1988 

 
Infrastructure 

 
Authorise temporary stopping up of highways for 
mineral workings 

 
S261 Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 

 
Infrastructure 

  

Page 85



42 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Actions in respect of the diversion of public paths 
arising form the grant of planning approval  

Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990  

 
Infrastructure 

 
To serve notices requiring particulars of ownership  

 
s16 Local Government (  
Miscellaneous ) 
Provisions Act 1976 

Infrastructure  
Discharge functions relating to stray dogs 

 
Section 149, 
Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
(PO) 

 

 

 

 

SERVICE DIRECTOR, ENABLING 

 

 
Enabling 

 
Duties relating to the overall management of their 
service in line with the principles for officer decision-
making. 

 

 HR/Personnel  
 
Enabling  

 
Receipt of notification to deal with objections by the 
Executive to appointments or dismissals of Chief 
Officers or their deputies 

 
Local Authorities 
(Standing Orders) 
(England) Regulations 
2001 (PO) 

 

Enabling 

 

Approve minor variations to existing corporate 
personnel policies, and recommend substantial 
changes to the Chief Executive 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Agree additional increments to individual employees 
based on exceptional contribution (on the 
recommendation of Chief Officers and subject to 
budgetary provision ) 

 

 

 

Enabling 

  

Page 86



43 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 Approve requests for approval of outside interests or 
employment made by employees (in consultation with 
the Monitoring Officer) 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Authorise the payment of honoraria to employees 
(excluding staff in schools and colleges) 

 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve travel / subsistence arrangements where they 
are in excess of existing rules, where this is unavoidable 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Introduce and maintain employee benefit arrangements 
(other than the provision of cars) 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Review and implement conditions of service for 
employees further to NJC, and other, agreements, 
including recruitment and retention incentives 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Convene panels of members for hearing employee 
appeals on discipline, dismissal and grading, and on 
other matters where a member appeal panel may 
exceptionally be required 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Exercise any employer pension discretions, in 
consultation with the s151 officer 

 

 

Page 87



44 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 Property and Estates  
 

Enabling 

 

 

Authorise repairs, appointment of agents and 
applications for planning permission, in connection 
with the sale of surplus property 

 

 

Cabinet 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Agree rating assessments for Council property, and 
make proposals and objections to the Valuation Court 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Exercise day-to-day control over the Council’s land and 
premises and serve all necessary notices and counter-
notices 

 

 

Full Council 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Declare surplus and authorise terms for the acquisition 
or sale of property not exceeding £500,000 in value (with 
property of a greater value requiring Cabinet decision) 

 

 

Cabinet 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve allowances to tenants for expenditure incurred 
by them for repairs, drainage rates and the like. 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Settle dilapidation claims and compensation payments 
on the termination or surrender of hirings or lettings in 
accordance with relevant statutory provisions 

 

 

 

Enabling 

  

Page 88



45 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 Take all necessary steps to recover possession of land 
or property, save that where such property or land is 

occupied by travellers, not to take such action without: 

 

• giving prior consideration to the educational health 
and welfare needs of those involved  

• consulting with the Local Member or if they 
cannot be contacted, with the relevant Portfolio 
Holder. 

 

 

Human Rights Act 1998, 
Children Act 1989, 
Housing Act 1985 

 

Enabling 

 

 

 

Authorise the granting of leases and licences whether 
as a Landlord or Tenant, and up to a value of £500,000 
capitalised over the term or £50,000 in rental value (with 
leases and licenses of a greater value requiring Cabinet 
decision). Where the value is above this and the Chief 
Executive is not involved, Cabinet to decide 

 

 

Cabinet 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve the terms for the surrender of leases and 
licences and any pre-existing terms up to a maximum of 
£500,000 (with leases and licenses of a greater value 
requiring Cabinet decision).Where the value is above 
this and the Chief Executive is not involved, Cabinet to 
decide. 

 

Cabinet 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Submit planning applications on behalf of the Council 

 

 

Council, as owner of 
property 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Enter into party wall agreements with adjoining owners 
to Council property 

 

Council, as owner of 
property 

Page 89



46 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

 

Managment of industrial and commercial premises 
including lease renewals and rent reviews. 

 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Authorise the purchase at market value of land and 
premises included in compulsory purchase orders 
made by the Council or its predecessor councils, 
together with blight/purchase notices accepted by the 
Council, including payment of compensation in 
accordance with relevant legislation, subject to 
availability of funding within the Council’s capital 
programme, or from elsewhere. 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve the review of rents reserved by existing leases 
and tenancy agreements of Council land and property 
at current market rental levels 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve assignments of the residue of leases and 
tenancy agreements and underleases thereof subject to 
the receipt of satisfactory references. 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve (where appropriate at the market value thereof) 
the modification or release of covenants contained in 
existing conveyances, leases, agreements and licences 

 

Page 90



47 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

subject to compliance with the Council’s planning or 
other policies and to approve the terms of any such 
modification or release. 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve the grant of easements, wayleaves, etc. over 
Council owned land where the annual 
acknowledgement to be paid does not exceed £1,000, 
or where a capital payment of up to £10,000 is involved. 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve the purchase of or agreements for easements, 
wayleaves, etc. necessary to fulfil Council requirements 
where the annual acknowledgement to be paid does not 
exceed £1,000 or a capital payment of £10,000 and 
settle subsequent claims where the total in respect of 
capital payments and claims does not exceed £10,000 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Approve the appointment of professional advisers 
and/or agents, using any select list currently in force, 
and to settle any fees or other costs arising therefrom 
providing they are within budget allocations approved 
for this purpose. 

 

 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Authority to let and manage shops, buildings and land 
held under the Housing Revenue Account (including 
granting/refusal of wayleaves/easements/restrictive 
covenants; renewal of leases, and serving Notices to 
Quit for breach of covenant). 

 

 

   

Page 91



48 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Enabling 

 

Determine whether assets are listed or not as assets of 
community value. 

 

 

Localism Act 2011 

The Assets of 
Community Value 
(England) Regulations 
2012 

 

Enabling 

 

 

Determine whether compensation is payable to an 
owner in respect of the community right to bid 

 

 

Localism Act 2011 

  

SERVICE DIRECTOR, COMMUNITIES AND CUSTOMER 

 

 

 Licensing  
 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 

Exercise licensing functions including: 

 

• regulation of activities involving animals 
(excluding dangerous wild animals and those in 
zoos) – excluding final approval  of LA policy 
statement and fee setting which are matters for 
Strategic Licensing Committee 

• regulation of activities involving dangerous wild 
animals excluding final approval  of LA policy 
statement and fee setting which are matters for 
Strategic Licensing Committee 

• regulation of caravan sites, moveable dwellings 
and camping sites (including arrangements for 
site managers to be fit and proper persons) 
excluding final approval  of LA policy statement 
and fee setting which are matters for Strategic 
Licensing Committee 

• regulation of Mobile Homes  -  arrangements for 
site managers to be fit and proper persons 
excluding final approval  of LA policy statement 

 

 

Dangerous Wild 
Animals Act 1976 

 

Animal Welfare Act 
2006 

 

The Animal Welfare 
(Licensing of Activities 
Involving Animals) 
(England) Regulations 
2018 

 

Caravan Sites and 
Control of Development 
Act 1960 

 

Page 92



49 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

and fee setting which are matters for Strategic 
Licensing Committee 

• regulation of the distribution of free printed 
material, save for: 

- Designation by Order of land for the purposes of 
Schedule 3A of the EPA 1990 and revocation of 
any such order which is a matter for Strategic 
Licensing Committee; and Final approval of the 
Litter Authority Policy Statement which is a 
matter for Cabinet 
 

• regulation of licensing for storing explosives, 
save for: 

- Final approval of the Local Authority Policy 
Statement which is a matter for Cabinet; 
- Fee setting which is matter for Strategic 
Licensing Committee; 
- Applications for Local Authority Assent where 
representations received and not withdrawn; 
which are matters for Licensing and Safety Sub-
committee 
- Decisions to vary or revoke  licences, where 
representations received and not withdrawn 
which are matters matter for Licensing and 
Safety Sub-committee; 
- Decisions to refuse, renew or transfer licences 
where representations received and not 
withdrawn which are matters matter for 
Licensing and Safety Sub-committee; 
 

• licensing of premises for gambling save for: 

- Final approval of the Licensing Authority  Policy 
Statement which is a matter for Council; 

 
- Policy not to permit casinos and fee setting 

which are matters for Cabinet; 
 
- Applications for premises license, to vary, or 

transfer licenses, 
 applications for a Provisional Statement, where 
representations are received and not withdrawn; 

Public Health Act 1936 

 

Mobile Homes Act 2013 

 

The Mobile Homes (Site 
Licensing) (England) 
Regulations 2014 

 

Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 

 

The Explosives 
Regulations 2014 

 

Fireworks Regulations 
2014 

 

Gambling Act 2005 

 

Town Police Clauses 
Act 1847 

 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976 

 

The Taxi and Private 
Hire Vehicle 
(Safeguarding and Road 
Safety) Act 2022 

 

Page 93



50 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Review of a premises licence, 
Application for club gaming/club machine 
permits where objections are made and not 
withdrawn, 
Cancellation of club /club machine permits, 
Decision to give a counter notice to a temporary 
use notice 

which are matters for Licensing Act Sub-
Committee. 
 
• licensing of Hackney Carriage and private hire 

drivers, operators and vehicles save for final 
approval of the Local Policy Statement and Fee 
setting which are matters for Strategic Licensing 
Committee  

• licensing of house-to-house collections save for 
final approval of the LA Policy statement which 
is a matter for Strategic Licensing Committee 

• licensing of personal and premises licenses 
(including licensing of temporary events and 
power to appoint a sub-committee of 3 
Members from the membership of the Strategic 
Licensing Committee for the purposes of 
determining the applications under the 
Licensing Act 2003) , save for:  
-final approval of the Licensing authority policy 
statement which is matter for Council; 

-Fee setting which is a matter for Cabinet; 

-Matters for Licensing Act sub-committee as 
follows:  

➢ Personal licence with no convictions or 
spent convictions if a police objection is 
made, 

➢ Personal Licence with unspent 
convictions, 

➢ Application for Premises Licence/Club 
Premises Certificate if relevant 
representation is made and not 
withdrawn, 

➢ Application for a provisional statement if 
a relevant representation is made and 
not withdrawn, 

The House to House 
Collections Act 1939 

House Collections 
Regulations 1947 

 

Licensing Act 2003 

 

The Business and 
Planning Act 2020 

 

Scrap Metal Dealers Act 
2013 

 

Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1982 

 

Policing and Crime Act 
2009 

 

Charities Act 1992 

 

Police, Factories &c 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1916 

 

Zoo Licensing Act 1981 

 

 

Page 94



51 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

➢ Application to vary a premises 
licence/club premises certificate if a 
relevant representation is made and not 
withdrawn, 

➢ Application to vary designated premises 
supervisor if a police objection is made, 

➢ Application for transfer of premises 
licence if a police objection is made, 

➢ Application for interim authority if a 
police objection is made, 

➢ Application to review premises 
licence/club premises certificate, 

➢ Decision to object when Licensing 
Authority is consultee only, 

➢ Determination of objections to 
temporary event notice, 

➢ Determination of application to vary 
premises licence at community 
premises to include alternative licence 
condition if a police objection is made, 

➢ Revocation of personal licence under 
s124 LA 2003 if police, or Secretary of 
State (immigration) objection notice is 
made and not withdrawn, 

➢ Revocation and suspension of personal 
licence under s132A Licensing Act 2003, 

 
 

• pavement licensing save for final approval of LA 
policy stament and fee setting which are 
matters for Strategic Licensing Committee 

• licensing for scrap metal (collection and sites)  
save for final approval of LA policy statement 
which is a matter for Cabinet and fee setting 
which is a matter for Strategic Licensing 
Committee 

• licensing of sex establishments save for  

- Applications for new, renewal or transfer of 
sex establishment licence where 
observations and /or objections are received 
and not withdrawn, 

- final approval of the LA policy statement, fee 
setting and prescribing standard conditions 

Page 95



52 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

on a sex establishment licence which are 
matters for Strategic Licensing Committee, 

- revoking an existing sex establishment 
licence and applications to waive the 
requirement of a sex establishment licence 
which are matters for Licensing and Safety 
Sub-committee 
 

• registration of persons and premises to carry out 
skin piercing and other temporary / semi-
permanent cosmetic procedures (Acupuncture, 
Tattooing, Semi-permanent skin colouring, 
Cosmetic Piercing and Electrolysis) save for 
final approval of LA policy statement and fees 
setting which are matters for Strategic Licensing 
Committee. 
 

• licensing of street collections save for Approval 
of the proposed Regulations under Police, 
Factories, & c. (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 
1916 for confirmation by the Secretary of State 
or the Minister for the Cabinet Office which is a 
matter for Strategic Licensing Committee 
 
 

• licensing of street trading  save for; 
- final approval of LA policy statement and fee 
setting which are matters for Strategic Licensing 
Committee 
- applications for new or renewal of licence, 
specifying principle and subsidiary terms of the 
licence, and revocation of a licence, where 
representations are made and not withdrawn 
which are matters for Licensing and Safety Sub-
Committee 
 

• licensing of zoos save for 

- final approval of LA policy statement and fee 
setting which are matters for Strategic 
Licensing Committee 

- Application for new licences where 
representations are received and not 
withdrawn which is a matter for Licensing 
and Safety Sub-committee 

Page 96



53 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

 Environmental Health, Trading Standards, Ecology, 
Animal Health and welfare, Enforcement 

 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 
Discharge regulatory powers, duties and responsibilities 
in respect of Environmental Health (including  
housing), Trading Standards (including Road Traffic and 
Weight Restrictions),  Licensing, Burials, Cremations, 
Ecology and Animal Health and Welfare  

 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 

Authenticate documents,  issue of notices (including 
abatement notices) , institute proceedings, enter 
premises, apply for warrants of entry, works in default 
relating to various statutory provisions  

 

 

Public Health Acts, 
Control of Pollution Act 
1974, Housing Acts 
1957 and 1988, Local 
Government Act 1989, 
Local Government 
(Miscellaneous 
Provisions) Act 1976, 
Prevention of Damage 
by Pests Act 1949, Food 
Safety Act 1990, 
Building Act 1984, 
Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 (all 
PO) 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 
Appoint, designate and authorise officers as inspectors, 
sampling officers or authorised officers as the case may 
be for the purposes of the legislation concerning 
Environmental Health (including housing), Trading 
Standards (including Road Traffic and Weight 
Restrictions), Licensing, Burials, Cremations, Ecology 
and Animal Health and Welfare matters 

 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 
To authorise the institution and defence of proceedings 
brought: 
(i)under the legislation  concerning Environmental 
Health (including housing), Trading Standards, 
(including Road  Traffic and Weight Restrictions), 
Consumer Protection, Licensing, Burials, Cremations, 
Ecology and Animal Health and Welfare matters. 
 
(ii) for any offence under any legislation whatsoever or 
any offence contrary to  common law where 

 

Page 97



54 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

proceedings for such offence concern or arise from  
(whether directly or indirectly) any of the functions of 
the Council in pursuance  
of Environmental Health (including housing), Trading 
Standards (including Road Traffic and Weight 
Restrictions), Licensing, Burials, Cremations,  Ecology 
or Animal Health and Welfare or  any other 
function/service area of  
the Council where proceedings for such  
an offence for which permission by  the Chief Officer 
with responsibility for that function has been granted 

 

Trading 
Standards and 
Parking 
Enforcement 
Team 
Manager6 

 

Act as the Chief Inspector of Weights and Measures [if 
holding a certificate of qualification] 

Including  authorising officers to act as inspectors of 
weights and measures and instituting proceedings 

 

 

Section 73, Weights and 
Measures Act 1985 (PO)  

 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

Act on food safety matters 

 

 

Section 5, Food Safety 
Act 1990 (PO) 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

 

Nominate a public analyst 

 

 

Section 27, Food Safety 
Act 1990 (PO) 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

 

Appoint agriculture inspectors and an agricultural 
analyst 

 

Section 67, Agriculture 
Act 1970 (PO) 

  
Enforcement in respect of the following areas to 
include: 

• Discharging the  powers, duties and 
responsibilities of the Council; 

• Appointing, designating and authorising 
officers; 

 

 
6 See paragraph D10 above 

Page 98



55 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

• Authorising the institution and defence of 
proceedings 

 
Communities 
and Customer 

Civil enforcement of Traffic Contraventions and Blue 
Badge scheme 

Traffic Management Act 
2004 
Chronically Sick and 
Disabled Persons Act 
1970 
 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of littering to include fixed 
penalty notices and dealing with the unauthorised 
distribution of free printed matter 

Sections 87,88, 
Schedule 3A 
Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of Abandoned Vehicles/Fly-
Tipping: 
Abandoned motor vehicles, and related items, 
unauthorised/harmful depositing  of waste, 
transportation of controlled waste without registering,  
to include removal of such waste, and issue of fixed 
penalty notices for contraventions 
 

Refuse Disposal 
(Amenity) Act 1978 
Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 
Control of Pollution 
(Amendment) Act 1989 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of Fly-Posting/Graffiti:  
Displaying advertisements in contravention of 
regulations,   
Obliterating traffic signs including signposts erected or 
placed along a footpath, bridleway, restricted byway or 
byway,  
Painting or otherwise inscribing or affixing marks on the 
surface of or on any structures in or on the highway,  
Destroying or damaging property as it relates to the 
painting or writing on, or the soiling, marking or other 
defacing of, any property by whatever means, 
to include issuing  penalty notices for relevant offences 
relating to graffiti and fly-posting 
 

Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 – 
s224 
Highways Act 1980 
s131, s132 
Criminal Damage Act 
1971 
Anti-Social Behaviour 
Act 2003 – s44 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of nuisance parking; 
Exposing vehicles for sale on a road, 
Repairing vehicles on a road, 
Nuisance parking, 
To include issuing fixed penalty notice, 
 

Clean Neighbourhoods 
and Environment Act 
2005 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of pavement permits: Highways Act 1980  

Page 99



56 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Administration and  enforcement of permission to use 
the highway - insofar as it relates  to the use of the 
highway where no pavement permit has been sought or  
granted 
 

Communities 
and Customer 

Enforcement in respect of waste: 
Making and retention of controlled waste related  
documents and the furnishing of documents, 
Fixed penalty notices for offences relating to EPA 1990 
Sections 34 (5) and (6), 46, 47, 47ZA 
Provision of adequate  receptacles for waste 
(household, commercial, industrial)  
 

Environmental  
Protection Act 1990  

Communities 
and Customer 

Exercise functions relating to anti-social behaviour and 
community protection including administration and 
enforcement of Community Protection Notices, and 
Public Space Protection Orders 
 

Anti-Social Behaviour 
Act 2003 (PO) 
 
Anti-Social Behaviour, 
Crime and Policing Act 
2014 (PO) 

 Housing   
Communities 
and Customer 

Appoint Rent Officers under scheme, and certify 
provision of suitable alternative accommodation 

Section 63, Rent Act 
1977 (PO) 
 
Schedule 15, Part IV, 
Para 7 (PO) 

Communities 
and Customer 

Assess and enforce housing standards, including 
improvement notices, prohibition orders, hazard 
awareness notices, emergency remedial action, 
emergency prohibition orders, making demolition 
orders, prosecutions, overcrowding notices, notices for 
production of documents and information , closing 
orders, clearance areas, licenses for excess numbers,  
abatement of  overcrowding, grant of assistance to 
occupants of defective housing, enforcing powers of 
entry 

Housing Act 2004, 
Housing Act 1985 

 
Communities 
and Customer 

 
Declare a Renewal Area including powers of entry 
 

 
Section 89, Local 
Government and 
Housing Act 1989 
 

Communities 
and Customer 

Part 1 Determination of applications for Disabled 
Facilities  
Grants 

Housing Grants,  
Construction and  
Regeneration Act  
1996 

Page 100



57 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Communities 
and Customer 

Determination of applications for financial assistance 
made under the Council’s Private Sector Housing  
Assistance Policy 

The Regulatory  
Reform (Housing  
Assistance)  
(England &  
Wales) Order  
2002 

Communities 
and Customer 

Notices to obtain particulars of persons interested in  
land 

Local Government  
Misc. Provisions)  
Act 1976 (as  
amended) 

Communities 
and Customer 

Restore or continue the  supply of water, gas or 
electricity. 
 

Local Government  
Misc. Provisions)  
Act 1976 (as  
amended) 

Communities 
and Customer 

All actions to gain possession of property occupied as a 
consequence of the duty to house under Housing Act 
1996 

Housing statutes and 
common law 

Communities 
and Customer 

Powers in relation to inquiries, decisions and actions 
relating to homeless or threatened with homelessness 
applicants, and reviews in relation to homelessness 
decisions  

Housing Act 1996 

Communities 
and Customer 

Signing Acknowledgment of Party Structure Notices  Party Wall Act 1996 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority to authorize Anti-Social Behaviour orders and 
other legal tools (including application to the Courts for 
demotion of a Secure Tenancy and to seek possession 
of a tenancy under a demoted  tenancy) in order to 
combat nuisance in and around multi-tenure  estates 

Crime and Disorder Act 
1998 suppl. By Anti 
Social Behaviour Act 
2003 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority  to issue notices, commence court 
proceedings, and make  decisions to gain possession of 
a secure tenancy on one of more  of the statutory 
grounds 

Housing Act 1985 as 
amended by the 
Housing Acts 1988 & 
1996 

Communities 
and Customer 

S.2 - Authority to grant permission for a mutual 
exchange or assignment of tenancy.  
Schedule 3 - Authority to withhold consent for a mutual 
exchange or  assignment 
 

Housing Act 1985 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority to grant a tenant a home loss payment (HLP) 
where he/she is displaced from a dwelling in 
consequence of: 

a) The compulsory acquisition of an interest in the 
dwelling; 

b) he making or acceptance of a housing order or 
undertaking in  respect of the dwelling; 

Land Compensation  
Act 1973  - s29 

Page 101



58 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

c) Where the land has been previously acquired by 
an authority  possessing compulsory powers or 
appropriated by a local  authority and is for the 
time being held by the authority for the  
purposes for which it was acquired or 
appropriated, the  carrying out of any 
improvement to the dwelling or of  
redevelopment on the land; 

d) The making of an order for possession on ground 
10 or 10A in part II of Schedule 2 to the Housing 
Act 1985 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority: 
a) to approve the sales of Council Dwellings; 
b) to deny the Right to Buy where the terms and 

conditions of  
c) paragraph 11 are not met; 
d) to enter into deeds of rectification for houses 

sold under the  Right to Buy; 
e) to apply service charges to leasehold properties 

sold under the Right to Buy 

Housing Act 1985 
(as amended) 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority to issue notices, commence court 
proceedings and make decisions to gain possession of a 
flexible tenancy on one or more  of the statutory 
grounds. 

Housing Act 1985 as  
amended by the  
Localism Act 2011 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority: 
a) to make decisions on the option of re-

purchasing properties which are offered back to 
the Council; 

b) to decide whether the full amount of discount 
on the sale of  a Council house within the 5 year 
period should be repaid 

Housing Act 2004 
(as amended) 

Communities 
and Customer 

Authority to: 
a) grant an Introductory Tenancy; 
b) extend the trial period in relation to an 

Introductory Tenancy 
c) conduct a review of a decision to extend the trial 

period of  an Introductory Tenancy; 
d) seek possession of a dwelling where there is a 

breach of an  
e) Introductory Tenancy 

Housing Act 1996 as  
amended by Housing  
Act 2004 

 Assets of Community Value  
Communities 
and Customer 

Determine reviews against the listing of an asset of 
community value 
 

Localism Act 2011 
The Assets of 
Community Value 

Page 102



59 
 

 

Power held 
by… 

 

 

Brief description of power 

 

 

Source of the power 

 

Determine reviews against the payment or not of 
compensation by the owner in respect of assets of 
community value  
 
 

(England) Regulations 
2012 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 105

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 Return of Election of Shropshire Councillors
	9 Appointment of Cabinet Members, Deputy Cabinet Members and their Portfolios
	10 Constitution of Committees and Allocation of Seats to Political Groups
	Appendix 1 UPDATED Constit of Cttees & Allocation of Seats

	11 Appointment to Outside Bodies, Committees and Other Groups
	Appendix 1 - May 2025

	12 Scheme of Delegation
	Appendix 1 - Part 8 delegations rev 16.5.25 final

	15 Exempt Minutes



